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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, let's

          3  go.  Good afternoon.  My name is Madeline

          4  Provenzano, and as most of you probably know, I

          5  Chair the Committee on Housing and Buildings. Today

          6  there is one item on the Committee's agenda:

          7                 Proposed Int. 478- A, a Local Law to

          8  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

          9  York in relation to enacting the New York City

         10  Plumbing Code, based on the 2003 edition of the

         11  International Plumbing Code, published by the

         12  International Code Council and enacting

         13  administrative provisions applicable to such New

         14  York City Plumbing Codes, and to such other codes as

         15  may hereafter be enacted by the City based on the

         16  2003 editions of the International Building Code,

         17  the International Fuel Gas Code, the International

         18  Mechanical Code, and the International Residential

         19  Code.

         20                 This is the third Committee hearing

         21  that has been held on this item, or an earlier

         22  version of this legislation. Proposed Int. 478- A

         23  would create a new Plumbing Code for New York City,

         24  and adopt many of the administrative provisions of

         25  the Building Code that relate to operations of the
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          2  Department of Buildings for permitting, licensing,

          3  and the payment of various fees.

          4                 Proposed Int. 478- a sets in motion a

          5  process for the adoption of the 2003 editions of the

          6  International Building Code, the International Fuel

          7  Gas Code, the International Mechanical Code, and the

          8  International Residential Code, with modifications

          9  for the City of New York, as the basis of a new

         10  Building Code applicable within the City.  The bill

         11  would require the Department of Buildings to submit

         12  modifications to these International Codes before

         13  the new Building Code would take effect.  Proposed

         14  Int. 478 A would permit the new code to be revised

         15  every three years to ensure that New York City

         16  remains in synchronization with the latest national

         17  codes and standards.

         18                 As most of the people in this

         19  audience today know, the current efforts of the

         20  Administration to revise and update the City's

         21  Building Code is known as the Model Code Program.

         22  Building Codes provide the minimum standards for the

         23  construction of buildings, in order to protect the

         24  health, safety, and welfare of the public.

         25                 The Model Code Program is organized
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          2  and managed by the Department of Buildings, and is

          3  comprised of over 400 volunteers, who serve on

          4  various building and electrical code committees.

          5  The process to update and revise the Building Code

          6  parallels the process used to update the City's

          7  Electrical Code.

          8                 The Model Code Program presently has

          9  13 Technical Committees involved in drafting the new

         10  Code, and eight Advisory Committees to offer policy

         11  advice in areas impacted by the Building Code.  The

         12  Technical Committees consist of the following:

         13  Accessibility; Administration/Enforcement;

         14  Construction Requirements; Construction Safety and

         15  Demolition; Egress; Elevators/Conveyors; Existing

         16  Buildings; Fire Protection; Materials;

         17  Mechanical/HVAC/Boilers; Plumbing; Residential; and

         18  Structural/Foundation.

         19                 The Advisory Committees, as of this

         20  date, consist of: Affordable Housing;

         21  Banking/Insurance; City Council; Economic

         22  Development; Labor; Risk; and Security and

         23  Sustainability.  As we have heard during previous

         24  hearings, the Technical Committees are involved in

         25  the assessment and drafting of the Technical Code
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          2  language, and the Advisory Committees function to

          3  provide recommendations in certain public policy

          4  areas.

          5                 The Managing Committee and key staff

          6  at the Department of Buildings shepherd the efforts

          7  to amend the Building Code, and make recommendations

          8  to the Commissioner.  DOB will eventually be

          9  responsible for review, assessment, compilation,

         10  implementation, and training relating to the

         11  Building Code and Electrical Code.

         12                 The original version of Int. 478- A

         13  would have provided for the adoption of the

         14  International Building Code and certain companion

         15  codes that were developed by the International Code

         16  Council to replace the current Building Code of the

         17  City of New York.  The "A version" before this

         18  Committee, was derived as a result of a

         19  collaborative effort to derive the best Building

         20  Code for our City.

         21                 Significant amendments to Proposed

         22  Int. 478- A include the following:

         23                 References to the International

         24  Existing Building Code have been eliminated from the

         25  bill's title and from this legislation.  The Tables
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          2  contained in the bill have been conformed for New

          3  York City.  Specific references within the bill that

          4  attempted to impose a timeframe for the City Council

          5  to act upon future legislative proposals submitted

          6  by the Department of Buildings concerning updates to

          7  the Building Code based on this legislation have

          8  been eliminated.

          9                 Significantly, the effective date of

         10  the new codes created based on this legislation will

         11  be July 1, 2007, with a one year phase- in period.

         12  Whereas, the previous A version of this bill

         13  contained an effective date of July 1, 2006.  I

         14  guess that means we're at least a year behind.

         15                 Finally, this legislation is being

         16  considered with the understanding that the technical

         17  provisions of Local Laws that were adopted within

         18  the last two legislative sessions, specifically 2002

         19  to 2003, and 2004 to 2005, that address the Building

         20  Code will be retained in the provisions of the codes

         21  that are adopted pursuant to this legislation for

         22  the first cycle.

         23                 The Committee on Housing and

         24  Buildings anticipates hearing additional testimony

         25  from Patricia Lancaster, Commissioner of Buildings.
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          2  And representatives of model code organizations,

          3  architects, engineers, fire safety professionals,

          4  labor, and the real estate industry, and other

          5  persons interested in this issue.            The

          6  Committee wishes to thank all those individuals and

          7  organizations that have participated in the

          8  legislative process by offering their comments,

          9  criticisms, suggestions, and testimony, which have

         10  been relevant to the creation and drafting of this

         11  legislation.  The Committee hopes that his process

         12  will result in the adoption of a comprehensive and

         13  improved Building Code for New York City.

         14                 If there's anybody here today because

         15  you think we're voting on this today, we're not.

         16  And if any of you are disappointed, there's nobody

         17  more disappointed than I am.  But we will be voting

         18  on it on the 15th of November.

         19                 So, having said that, again, just

         20  once more, I'd like to thank everyone that's been

         21  associated with this.  I know how hard everybody's

         22  worked.  Marzio, without whom nothing would have

         23  happened, right Patricia?  All of the Committees.

         24  All of those 400 plus people who have contributed so

         25  much to this code.
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          2                 I held high hopes that it would have

          3  happened sooner.  It didn't.  But so be it.

          4                 Anyone wishing to speak today, you

          5  must sign in with the Sergeant- at- Arms.  Having

          6  said that, we have Commissioner Patricia Lancaster.

          7  Welcome once again.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Thank you

          9  Chairwoman Provenzano.  I'm joined on the bench by

         10  Robert Lumondri (phonetic), First Deputy

         11  Commissioner for Operations; Steven Kramer is Chief

         12  of Staff for the Department; on my immediate right

         13  is Marzio Penzi, Assistant Commissioner for the

         14  Model Code Program; and on his right, is Phyllis

         15  Arnold, General Counsel for the Department.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Patricia,

         17  could I interrupt you and introduce up here before

         18  they all run away on me?

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Sure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I would like

         21  to introduce Council Member Tony Avella; Council

         22  Member Melinda Katz.  Is that Dianna Reyna sitting

         23  next to you?  She got so little I can't see her.

         24  Council Member Dianna Reyna; Council Member Leroy

         25  Comrie.
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          2                 Did you want to speak before we --

          3  oh, okay.

          4                 We have enough votes, let's pass it.

          5  Screw them all, let's just do it.

          6                 Okay, enough already, I agree.  We'll

          7  even let you vote.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Good

          9  afternoon Chairwoman Provenzano and members of the

         10  Committee on Housing and Buildings. My name is

         11  Patricia Lancaster, and I am the Commissioner of the

         12  City's Department of Buildings.

         13                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         14  testify in support of Int. 478- A, relating to the

         15  establishment of a new Building Code for the City of

         16  New York.  I would also like to take this

         17  opportunity to thank all of the members of the New

         18  York City Model Code Program, who have generously

         19  donated their time and expertise to this effort.

         20                 As many of your already know, this

         21  legislation is the culmination of an unprecedented

         22  public/private partnership, as Madeline said, of

         23  over 400 professionals involved in 13 Technical and

         24  eight Advisory Committees, whose members include

         25  architects, engineers, representatives from the
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          2  construction industry, labor, real estate, the Fire

          3  Department, and other government entities. Over the

          4  past two years, these committees have been working

          5  together to craft a building code that reflects the

          6  needs of New York City.

          7                 The proposed text provisions

          8  contained in this bill represent the work product of

          9  the Administrative Enforcement Committee, and the

         10  Plumbing Technical Committee.  But this bill is not

         11  the final effort.  Int. 478- A also provides a

         12  framework for subsequent proposed legislation that

         13  would provide a comprehensive revision of the

         14  remaining portion of the City's current Building

         15  Code.  This includes provisions covering existing

         16  buildings, a fuel gas code and a residential code.

         17  The Administrative and Enforcement provisions and

         18  the Plumbing Code provisions in this bill will only

         19  become effective when the subsequent completion

         20  legislation is enacted by the City Council.

         21                 The new family of Construction Codes

         22  for the City of New York will include provisions of

         23  the national model codes and reference standards

         24  from the International Code Council, the National

         25  Fire Protection Association, and other national

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  codes and standards.  It will bring them all

          3  together in a code designed to fit the high- density

          4  urban environment of our City.

          5                 The new code will retain the most

          6  important public safety  provisions that are part of

          7  the current New York City Building Code, including

          8  the recent World Trade Center and Carbon Monoxide

          9  laws.  It will also incorporate the important new

         10  Local Laws that this Committee has passed.  These

         11  include legislation relating supportive scaffolds,

         12  equal access to bathroom facilities, green building

         13  requirements, and legislation prohibiting employers

         14  from locking individuals inside a work place, and

         15  increasing fines for obstruction of exits.  I

         16  believe our hard work will result in the highest

         17  quality building standards for New York City.

         18                 The new code also takes these

         19  provisions and integrates them in a standardized

         20  format that is aligned with codes used by New York

         21  State and most other states.  It will make the City

         22  both safer and more competitive with other urban

         23  centers, which will make it more affordable for

         24  people to live, work, and build in New York City.

         25                 Through our ongoing dialogue with the
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          2  Council, we have made a number of technical

          3  revisions to Int. 478- A since we were last before

          4  you in June.

          5                 For example, the original version of

          6  the bill included language to ease the Materials and

          7  Equipment Acceptance process in a way that will make

          8  it easier for manufacturers to introduce approved

          9  products into City construction.  While the new

         10  process will enable the use of nationally accepted

         11  and approved items, this version of the bill also

         12  ensures that the Department will retain the

         13  authority to prohibit building materials that

         14  inappropriate for use in New York City.

         15                 We have also changed the organization

         16  of the document into smaller, easier to use

         17  subsections.  This will make it easier to find

         18  specific topics while maintaining its underlying

         19  organizational structure.

         20                 The enactment of this bill will be a

         21  major step towards ensuring that New York City will

         22  have the most comprehensive building code, a code

         23  that the rest of the nation will look to for

         24  guidance and that will ensure that New York City is

         25  safe.
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          2                 As I have stated before, it is my job

          3  to see that the interests of the people of this City

          4  are well served. With that desire in mind, I ask

          5  that you embrace our shared vision and vote to pass

          6  Int. 478- A.

          7                 I want to thank all of you who came

          8  today for taking time to come, and the entire

          9  Council for your hard work, and for the time that

         10  you, your colleagues, and the members of the Model

         11  Code Program especially, have dedicated to this

         12  legislation.

         13                 Thank you.  I will be pleased to take

         14  questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         16  Do we have any questions?  Basically, we're all sick

         17  and tired of asking you questions.  You have a

         18  statement.  Go ahead.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Commissioner,

         20  I just want to thank you for your understanding and

         21  patience during this time. We've had a lot of

         22  meetings on this issue, and it seems today we're

         23  kind of at a happy medium.  Other than the technical

         24  issues, to make this happen.  And I hope that we can

         25  resolve those quickly, and we can get this voted out
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          2  before the end of this year.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          4  Council Member Comrie, and I want to say that you've

          5  been great in helping us build the consensus that

          6  we're committed to get this thing passed.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Something

          9  about the journeyman's opposition, I think you had

         10  raised that earlier, but I guess it's --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I thought it

         12  had -- I'll raise it again.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Just so that

         14  we get a response from you so we can get it on the

         15  record.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: There was an

         17  issue regarding the status of journeymen, and

         18  whether all plumber's journeymen had to take the

         19  test to be registered.  And some people had talked

         20  to me about that issue, and whether or not there was

         21  a test required as opposed to a registration fee.

         22                 MR. PENZI: This is Marzio Penzi.

         23  Currently, there's no testing requirement for

         24  journeymen.  It's simply it recognizes based on a

         25  person's background.  And experience.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: There's no

          3  test required.

          4                 MR. PENZI: No test required.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Just a

          6  registration fee.

          7                 MR. PENZI:  And the appropriate

          8  experience as outlined in the law.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And the makeup

         10  of the committee, has that changed?  There was a

         11  concern about the oversight committee, the number of

         12  members on from union versus non- union members.

         13  There was like a five/three split.  On the oversight

         14  committee.  I know I'm saying the technical name

         15  wrong.

         16                 MR. PENZI: If you're referring to the

         17  Plumbing Board --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes, I am.

         19                 MR. PENZI: Which oversees the

         20  licensing, it's a gatekeeper for the license of

         21  licensed master plumber, there has been some

         22  additional, not in this new revised version of 478-

         23  A, but the original version did include additional

         24  journeymen.  It didn't address whether they were

         25  union or non- union.  It just states that there are
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          2  journeymen representation that is entitled to be on

          3  the Board.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  And you

          5  feel that these changes will enhance the quality and

          6  safety of the provision of the plumbing services to

          7  the City?

          8                 MR. PENZI: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  Thank

         10  you.  I just wanted to get that for the record.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         12  Leroy.  We've also been joined, I think, by Council

         13  Member James Oddo.

         14                 Jimmy, do you have any questions that

         15  relate to the Model Code for Commissioner Lancaster?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Perfect timing.

         17  May I?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You may.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Let me just

         20  commend -- I apologize for being late, we just had a

         21  Health Committee across the way, and Public Safety.

         22  Let me just commend everyone involved in making

         23  these sweeping changes.  I certainly support them.

         24  But here's my concern.

         25                 Commissioner, how confident are you
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          2  in the members of your agency, that the members of

          3  your agency will be able to absorb, know, learn, and

          4  enforce the different changes?  Because we made

          5  changes to the Staten Island Growth Management, via

          6  the Staten Island Growth Management Task Force to

          7  building very specific, very tailored, much narrower

          8  in scope than the changes being made in this

          9  process.  And yet, last week, we say an instance

         10  where the Buildings Department, after being notified

         11  on three separate occasions, that it was violating

         12  Staten Island Growth Management, where it should be

         13  60 feet, it was only 33 feet in the back yard. We

         14  said to the Buildings Department, once, twice, three

         15  times. They said, no, we're wrong.  And then, after

         16  the building is built, and now two homes stand where

         17  there shouldn't be two homes, the Building

         18  Department did a Mea Culpa.  So how confident are

         19  you that your agency will be able to carry out the

         20  will of all the good folks who worked on this, when

         21  you can't carry out the will of something as narrow

         22  in scope as the Staten Island Growth Management Task

         23  Force?

         24                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Thank you for

         25  your question, Council Member.  To feel confident in
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          2  my basic capability to comply with a new code would

          3  be not to be humble enough about it, I don't think.

          4  What I do feel is confidence that the new code will

          5  be easier to use.  And that that will help folks to

          6  know where to look for things.  Its organization is

          7  completely superior, and that that will enhance

          8  their ability to enforce the code.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Is it as easy to

         10  use as understanding that 60 feet means 60 feet?

         11  And not 33 feet?  The rule in play, with the project

         12  I'm talking about was pretty plain. Pretty clear,

         13  and petty plain.  It meant 60 feet.  You couldn't

         14  have shared 30 feet in backyards.  It's pretty

         15  simple.

         16                 So, in that case, it was very easy to

         17  understand, and implement, and enforce.  And your

         18  agency fell down on the job, so how do I have

         19  confidence that your folks will be able to carry out

         20  the will of those who crafted the language?

         21                 MR. KRAMER: I think I'll respond.  My

         22  name is Steven Kramer.  I'm the Chief of Staff.  I

         23  think, Council Member Oddo, that anyone in New York

         24  City who has done any significant amount of work

         25  with the zoning resolution would not say that any
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          2  provision in that text, including the Growth

          3  Management provisions, are easy or straight forward.

          4    It's a very complex document.  And indeed, so is

          5  the Building Code, as you rightly point out.  What

          6  we're trying to do here, in this bill, is make the

          7  Building Code, not the zoning resolution, but the

          8  Building Code, a document that is transparent. Where

          9  you can go, in New York State, or in California, or

         10  in Kansas, or in Texas, and go to the same sections

         11  of that code as you'll find in New York City, to

         12  look to find the rules, for example, on egress, or

         13  on sprinklers, or on the amount of fire rating

         14  that's needed.  And the ability -- there's no

         15  question that movement from the existing Building

         16  Code, which, as you know, is in two volumes, over a

         17  thousand looseleaf pages each, with references to

         18  many different reference standards, all over the

         19  place, some of which are contradictory -- to a new

         20  code which is in a simplified, uniform format will

         21  make things better.  To say that the zoning

         22  resolution, that we'll never make any errors under

         23  the zoning resolution, I can't assure that, and the

         24  Commissioner can't either.  But what we can do is

         25  work to make a better Building Code, and I think
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          2  what we can do in another committee is work toward

          3  making a better zoning resolution.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Madam Chair,

          5  this will be my last question.  Mr. Kramer, I

          6  appreciate the goal.  I support the goal of

          7  simplifying the code.  And I am not going to sit

          8  here and say that the zoning resolution is a simple

          9  document to understand. The particular provision in

         10  question was very simple.  And on three separate

         11  occasions, my office reached out to your agency and

         12  said, the constituent thinks there's something

         13  wrong.  I think there's something wrong.  The

         14  Borough President's Land Use engineer thinks there's

         15  something wrong.  Is there something wrong?  And on

         16  three separate occasions, your agency said, no,

         17  there isn't something wrong.  Because apparently,

         18  only in your agency, does 60 feet not mean 60 feet.

         19  So while I appreciate the difference between the

         20  complexities in the zoning resolution and the code,

         21  the fact of the matter is, it was a relatively

         22  simple provision to understand, and your agency

         23  didn't.

         24                 So to me, the weak link in this

         25  entire process is your agency.  And I'm intrigued by
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          2  the notion that you folks will be able to

          3  understand, enforce, carry out the law under this

          4  new sweeping changes in this code.  Is there any

          5  training provision, where you -- any training

          6  planned?  Give us the details on how you plan to

          7  train the members of your agency.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes.  The

          9  year between the second completion bill submission

         10  and the enactment of the code itself, will give us

         11  time to do training of staff and professions. I

         12  think it's interesting that when I asked the

         13  professions of the industry what kind of grace

         14  period they wanted between the old code and the new

         15  code, they said, oh, we want to use it right away.

         16  Because they are using it in all other places, they

         17  thought that it would be easier and better in fact,

         18  to use it right away.

         19                 Instead, we've left a year, where we

         20  can train, and get the word out to all of our folks.

         21    I think the other thing that is important to

         22  realize is that we are leveraging heavily actually,

         23  the private sector, and can continue to do that, and

         24  also the International Code Council, who is here

         25  with us today, has training resources of which we
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          2  can avail ourselves.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, again I'd

          4  just like to close by thanking all the folks

          5  involved.  I know this has taken a lot of time and

          6  energy.  And I don't mean to be dismissive of all

          7  the efforts of you good folks.  I think that you've

          8  done a great job.  My fear is based in my every day

          9  experience.  And my every day experience with this

         10  agency leaves me with a terrible taste in my mouth,

         11  and I have to be either a little bit dopey, or the

         12  most optimistic guy in the world to think that in

         13  this endeavor, of such a scale, that the Buildings

         14  Department will be any more efficient than it is on

         15  a normal course of business.  Thank you Madam Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And the good

         17  thing, Council Member, is that for the next four

         18  years, you'll be around to be on top of everybody.

         19                 I'd also like to acknowledge the

         20  presence of Council Member Lou Fidler, and Council

         21  Member Katz.  You have a question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just very

         23  quickly.  A little difficult to ask considering the

         24  timeframe of all of this.  The question of "fucas".

         25  I know that we have a number of follow up actions in
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          2  legislation that apparently needs to be passed after

          3  this is passed.  Do you have any idea on the

          4  timeframes?  For those of you who don't know,

          5   "fucas" was I think coined in the Hudson Yards

          6  rezoning, if I'm not mistaken.  Which means follow

          7  up corrective actions.  So do you have a timeframe

          8  if we pass this let's say on November 15th, which is

          9  what I think the plan is, whether you've been in the

         10  process of drafting already, or whether that's going

         11  to happen later.  And if you can give us just some

         12  sort of idea on that, that would be helpful.

         13                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Sure.  Yes,

         14  we're intending to submit the second completion bill

         15  next Summer.  We haven't stopped.  People here are

         16  working furiously to get the technical provisions

         17  written, and out of committee and into the hands of

         18  the drafters, which we have some of that in process

         19  already, and some of it's at the law department

         20  already.  So it's going to be a huge bill.  So it's

         21  like a train, it just left the station, and it's

         22  proceeding.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And that's the

         24  second part of this bill, I understand.  And so

         25  that's next Summer you think we'd probably have a
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          2  draft, or --

          3                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: No.  We're

          4  intending to submit the bill sooner.  The companion

          5  bill, yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So we figure the

          7  International -- this code will be done in about a

          8  year and a half.

          9                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes.  It's

         10  set to take -- I mean, our intention is that it take

         11  effect in July of 2007.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Any other

         15  questions?

         16                 Okay.  Thank you very much.

         17                 Next we have Sara, are you here?

         18  Yerkes, from the International Code Committee?

         19  Welcome.

         20                 I understand James Lee Witt couldn't

         21  be with us, he's kind of busy helping to build up

         22  Louisiana, I think, at this present time.

         23                 For those of you that don't know, for

         24  the two gentlemen to my right, we're not voting on

         25  it today.  We'll be voting on it on the 15th.  So in
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          2  case you were expecting -- okay.

          3                 Sara, welcome.

          4                 MS. YERKES: Thank you.  Good

          5  afternoon Madam Chairman and members of the

          6  Committee.  I'm Sara Yerkes.  I'm Senior Vice

          7  President for Government Relations for the

          8  International Code Council, and I'm sitting in for

          9  James Lee Witt, who cannot be here today.  And

         10  sitting with me is your New York ICC representative,

         11  Dotty Harris.

         12                 Again thank you for providing ICC the

         13  opportunity to speak to you today in support of Int.

         14  478- A.  The International Code Council is a not-

         15  for- profit membership association, dedicated to

         16  protecting the health, safety, and welfare of the

         17  public, by developing and supporting the codes

         18  utilized to construct virtually all new buildings

         19  and renovate all existing buildings in the United

         20  States.  The International Codes have been adopted

         21  throughout the country, including the state of New

         22  York, the neighboring states of Connecticut and New

         23  Jersey.

         24                 The International Plumbing Code is

         25  enforced in 36 states, which is the plumbing
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          2  provisions that you have before you today in over

          3  11,167 municipalities including New York State and

          4  Connecticut.

          5                 I would like to thank you, Chairwoman

          6  Provenzano, members of the Committee on Housing and

          7  Buildings, and the entire City Council, and Mayor

          8  Bloomberg, for recognizing the importance of the new

          9  Building Code for the City of New York.  And I look

         10  forward to the passage of Int. 478- A, the first

         11  piece of legislation to make this goal a reality.

         12                 Now, if you will permit me, I'd like

         13  to read a letter from James Lee Witt, who had a

         14  conflict in schedule and could not be here.

         15                 Dear Chairwoman Provenzano:

         16                 Please accept my apologies for not

         17  being able to attend today's Housing and Buildings

         18  Committee meeting in person. I continue to spend

         19  most of my time in Louisiana, where the monumental

         20  task of assessing the damage done by Hurricane

         21  Katrina continues.  The effort to rebuild Louisiana

         22  will be long and difficult.  The urban renewal and

         23  reconstruction of New Orleans will be the largest

         24  such effort in the history of the United States,

         25  expected to cost $250 billion.  It is a massive

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  effort, but the will of the people of Louisiana is

          3  strong.  With the support of people, organizations,

          4  businesses, and government around the country, the

          5  state will be strong again.

          6                 In the wake of Hurricane Katrina, the

          7  state of Louisiana is committed to adopting and

          8  enforcing more stringent building codes.  The

          9  International Code Council will be there to assist

         10  with legislation, training, and education,

         11  coordination efforts and other needs.  The

         12  devastation I have witnessed in Louisiana

         13  illustrates the critical role that building safety

         14  codes have in protecting lives and properties.

         15  Major hurricanes are not limited to the Gulf Coast

         16  and Florida.  Manhattan could be flooded and New

         17  York could suffer as much damage as New Orleans if

         18  we were hit by a catastrophic hurricane.  The

         19  likelihood for destruction from a hurricane should

         20  not be overlooked, nor should the potential for

         21  disaster from an attack.

         22                 The International Code Council has

         23  worked closely with the New York City Department of

         24  Buildings in its efforts to adopt the International

         25  Code and address the unique needs of your City as
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          2  they relate to building safety and fire prevention.

          3  We also continue to work with the National Institute

          4  of Standards and Technology, reviewing its

          5  recommendations for high- rise safety and educating

          6  NIST on the code development process to facilitate

          7  bringing the results of the NIST investigation to

          8  the International Code Council's public forum.

          9                 The International Code Council

         10  provides stakeholders, including architects,

         11  engineers, builders, contractors, labor unions,

         12  government officials and manufacturers an

         13  opportunity to participate in the code development

         14  process. Using lessons learned from past experience,

         15  such as Hurricane Katrina and the attacks on the

         16  World Trade Center make the International Code

         17  stronger and help communities be more prepared.

         18                 We know the risks, and we know that

         19  codes, enforcement, education, planning, and

         20  preparedness save lives, reduce property losses and

         21  make New York City and communities around the world

         22  safer and stronger.

         23                 Sincerely,

         24                 James Lee Witt.

         25                 And that concludes my statement.
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          2  Very short, but know we're here to support.  We've

          3  been very pleased to work with the City, and the

          4  coalition, the supporters, stakeholders have been

          5  participating in the amendment of the codes, and

          6  we're here ready to serve the City in the future

          7  with the training, and education and other needs,

          8  and I heard Council Member Oddo mention it will be

          9  required, and ICC is fully prepared to support the

         10  City.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         12  very much.  And hopefully, maybe on the 15th, maybe

         13  we'll be able to get James Lee Witt up here.

         14  Actually, that's why we really didn't vote on it

         15  today.  We knew he couldn't make it.

         16                 MS. YERKES: Thank you.  He would have

         17  been here. He's been very busy down with the

         18  Governor of Louisiana.  Actually there are meetings

         19  going on this week.  They're looking at the

         20  Residential Code, looking at a mandatory state

         21  adoption of the Residential Code.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Are there any

         23  questions?

         24                 We have been joined by Council Member

         25  Joel Rivera I see.  Welcome.
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          2                 No questions.  Thank you very much.

          3                 All right, I'm going to call folks up

          4  in panels of three.  And by the way, this is the

          5  bill.  If anyone would like a copy of it, and hasn't

          6  had access to it, you could either see Terzah after

          7  the meeting, or talk to someone from the Department

          8  of Buildings.  But if you take it, you must read it,

          9  and there's going to be a test on the 15th.

         10                 Robert Benazzi; Gary LaBarbera; Dan

         11  Lucarelli.

         12                 Anyone of you can start when you're

         13  ready.

         14                 MR. BENAZZI: Good afternoon Madam

         15  Chairperson and Council Members.  My name is Robert

         16  V. Benazzi.  I am a partner and plumbing department

         17  head of Jarol, Baum, and Bolles Consulting

         18  Engineers, and represent the American Council of

         19  Engineering Company's New York Chapter.  JB&B is

         20  considered one of the foremost engineering companies

         21  in the world, and has provided the mechanical and

         22  electrical systems design for some of the most

         23  prestigious buildings in the world, including the

         24  original World Trade Center, the Bank of China

         25  buildings in both Hong Kong and Beijing, and the
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          2  Sears Tower in Chicago.  We are currently preparing

          3  the designs for the new World Trade Center,

          4  including the soon- to- be completed Seven World

          5  Trade Center.  We also are the engineers for One

          6  Bryant Park, the future headquarters of the Bank of

          7  America, scheduled to be completed in 2008, which is

          8  designed to a LEED platinum certification standards.

          9                 As chairman of the Plumbing Technical

         10  Committee of the Model Code Program, I come to

         11  personally testify before you today for the third

         12  time.  I am representing the 13 professionals

         13  representing various organizations of the

         14  construction industry, who form the permanent

         15  technical committee was well as another 15

         16  professionals who contributed their time and

         17  expertise as members of the subcommittees formed to

         18  review and help adopt the International Plumbing

         19  Code as the new plumbing code for the City of New

         20  York.

         21                 The members of this committee

         22  represent the broad spectrum of stakeholders within

         23  the plumbing industry ranging from engineers,

         24  contractors, union members, Building Department, and

         25  Fire Department personnel, representatives of the
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          2  Real Estate Board, REBNY, and the Building Owners

          3  and Managers Association, BOMA.  All of them

          4  recognized leaders in the plumbing and building

          5  field.

          6                 This committee, over the past two

          7  years,  has worked tirelessly, reviewing the

          8  International Plumbing Code, the IPC, and making

          9  sure that the specific needs of the types of

         10  building constructed in New York and our vast

         11  experience in designing high rise buildings were

         12  incorporated into the proposed new code using the

         13  IPC as the model.  In reviewing the minutes of our

         14  meetings in preparing for this presentation to you,

         15  I have calculated that we have spent in excess of

         16  900 man hours in this effort.  And we are only one

         17  of 13 technical committees working on the entire

         18  building code.  Why you may ask?  Buildings in New

         19  York go up, work well, why change the code?

         20                 I am sure you have listened carefully

         21  to the presentations of the Building Commissioner

         22  and others, and who has probably outlined the whys

         23  better than I.  But so you may hear from a

         24  practitioner first hand, indulge me for a few

         25  minutes.  As you know, the current New York City
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          2  Building Code was adopted in 1968.  When first

          3  adopted, the code was fair and relatively easy to

          4  use.  However, over the intervening 36 years, the

          5  code has been amended utilizing various Local Laws

          6  to try to keep the code up to date with changing

          7  technology and the needs of today's modern

          8  buildings.

          9                 These updates and piecemealing of the

         10  code have caused the current code to become dated,

         11  unwieldy, and difficult to use.  It has put the

         12  building industry in this City in a position that we

         13  can no longer compete with other big cities, or even

         14  some of our own small neighboring cities that have

         15  adopted modern codes, which provide architects,

         16  engineers, and builders the opportunity to construct

         17  new buildings utilizing new technologies, materials

         18  and equipment that allow these buildings to be far

         19  more economical and timely to construct than those

         20  which we can build in the City.

         21                 One only has to look across the

         22  Hudson to see the new and modern skyline that has

         23  risen, taking workers, industry, and tax payers from

         24  our City.  It is interesting to note that the states

         25  of New Jersey and Connecticut have adopted the
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          2  International Building Code.  It is especially

          3  interesting to note that the State of New York has

          4  also adopted the International Building Code, and

          5  the various I codes for the State Code.

          6                 It is my belief that the Plumbing

          7  Code that is part of Int. 478- A that you will be

          8  voting on, is a giant leap forward for the City.  It

          9  will be far easier to use, will bring new technology

         10  to the fore, and most important of all, provide for

         11  scheduled updates on a three- year cycle.

         12                 I believe, and it is the belief that

         13  the rest of my committee shares, that the mechanism

         14  for keeping the code current and meaningful is in

         15  place.  As you may be aware, the IPC is reviewed and

         16  updated on a three- year cycle.  The Commissioner

         17  has proposed that the Technical Committees formed

         18  remain in place and that the three- year code

         19  revisions be reviewed during the year after the IPC

         20  is promulgated.  Thus, it allows the New York City

         21  Building community to remain current with new

         22  technologies, yet gives the City the wherewithal to

         23  dismiss changes which the Building Department and

         24  building community do not believe to be in the

         25  interest of the City.
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          2                 Further, it means that instead of

          3  having to refer to an antiquated building code,

          4  reference standards, Local Laws, annotations, notes,

          5  rulings, et cetera, the building practitioners can

          6  refer to a current and updated single document.  It

          7  will allow the building industry in this great City

          8  to thrive and remain in the forefront of building

          9  technology.

         10                 We have had the proposed new code

         11  vetted by other practicing engineers, and have asked

         12  them to redesign buildings for which designs have

         13  been completed and priced to see if the new code

         14  mandated changes would put an overly harsh burden on

         15  developers and owners with respect to cost.  We have

         16  found that in the four building types studies, there

         17  is little, if any, cost impact.

         18                 I believe, and I am sure that I speak

         19  for the other members of the Plumbing Technical

         20  Committee, that passage of Int. 478- A and the

         21  future bill adopting the entire International

         22  Building Code will put New York City squarely in the

         23  forefront of the building industry and allow us to

         24  remain the Big Apple.

         25                 If you have any questions regarding
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          2  the proposed new Plumbing Code, I would be happy to

          3  try to answer them for you at this time, or after

          4  the other two presentations.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          6  Bob.  I just -- I know that you're the Chair of one

          7  of the Technical Committees, and I just want to take

          8  this opportunity once again, I don't think anybody

          9  on this Committee other than myself -- and I know I

         10  keep saying this -- but really understands what this

         11  process was all about.  And as a member of the

         12  Managing Committee, I did attend several of the

         13  committee meetings, and it's just amazing the work

         14  that went on from every professional people who just

         15  donated, volunteered their time and for no other

         16  reason than the betterment and welfare of this City.

         17    And I guess there's really no way that these folks

         18  can ever be repaid, other than seeing that this code

         19  gets to be a reality.  And that folks like Jimmy are

         20  staying on top of it.  Again, I just want to thank

         21  you.

         22                 Gary.  And thank you for bringing all

         23  your guys down.

         24                 MR. LABARBERA: Thank you.  Good

         25  afternoon Chairwoman Provenzano, Committee Members.
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          2  My name is Gary LaBarbera.  I serve as President of

          3  the International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Local

          4  282, which represents over 4,000 teamsters in the

          5  construction industry, as well as serving as

          6  President of Joint Council 16, International

          7  Brotherhood of Teamsters, representing over 120,000

          8  members in the New York metropolitan area.  As well

          9  as serving in those two positions, I also serve for

         10  the purpose of this testimony, as the Chairman of

         11  the Labor Advisory Committee.

         12                 Today, I come to give testimony in

         13  support of Intro. 478- A.  And I would like to state

         14  for the record that I'm very pleased that there

         15  seems to be consensus that this will be voted out in

         16  November.  Although I do have great disappointment

         17  that it wasn't accomplished today.

         18                 For over the last year, over 100,000

         19  building permits have been issued by the Department

         20  of Buildings.  We have, in New York City, begun a

         21  construction renaissance, and clearly, for a 21st

         22  century City, we need a 21st century code.  As was

         23  stated earlier in testimony, the current building

         24  codes have not been revised or modified since 1968.

         25                 One of the things that I would like
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          2  to put on the record on behalf of Local 282 in the

          3  commitment to these codes and to this process, and

          4  to the City of New York that we have spent hundreds

          5  of thousands of dollars in training over 600 of our

          6  ready mix concrete drivers to engage in a

          7  certification program that will be included as part

          8  of the administrative section of this code. What

          9  they have done, is go through hours of training and

         10  testing, every member of the Local has been through

         11  this process, has passed this process, and this

         12  certification is presented from the National Ready-

         13  Mix Association, which comes out of Washington, D.C.

         14

         15                 Part of the administrative change, it

         16  will be requirement for every driver in order to mix

         17  and delivery concrete in the City of New York to any

         18  project that requires a building code, that he or

         19  she shall have to have this certification.  The

         20  reason that, as an institution, Local 282 engaged in

         21  this endeavor, is because we believe that the safety

         22  and the product quality is very, very important in

         23  the future of this City.  Concrete is a very durable

         24  product, and it is integral in all major building

         25  construction.  Further, it is very important to us
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          2  that there are quality assurances as well as that

          3  the delivery person, the driver, is certified and

          4  that's why we went ahead and engaged in this

          5  process.

          6                 I cannot say enough about the

          7  importance and the transparency of the bill.  As a

          8  Chairman of the Labor Committee, I want to thank all

          9  of those that served on the committee.  There is

         10  broad support from the labor community for the

         11  passage of this bill.  And I hope that on November

         12  15th, we get this accomplished so that all of the

         13  hard work that has gone into this for the over 400

         14  volunteers, becomes a reality.  Because everyone

         15  that's been engaged in this process has one goal,

         16  and that is to better the City of New York.  Thank

         17  you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         19                 Dan.  I'm just trying to find your

         20  name.

         21                 MR. LUCARELLI: Good afternoon

         22  Chairwoman Provenzano and the City Council.  My name

         23  is Daniel Lucarelli.  I'm a business agent for

         24  Plumbers Local Union One, in New York City.

         25                 I make this statement on behalf of
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          2  Local One and over 5,800 men and women who live and

          3  work in the City of New York, in support of Int.

          4  478- A.  This bill has been before the City Council

          5  for over a year, and during the time, the Building

          6  Department has issued more than 100,000 construction

          7  permits, using a code adopted in 1968.  Many changes

          8  have occurred since 1968, and it's time to have a

          9  new code and take into account these changes. Local

         10  came to support Int. 478- A only after a careful

         11  study, and as a result of the hard work of the

         12  members of the Building Department, the 13 Technical

         13  Committees, and that reviewed each line of the

         14  present Building Code and the International Building

         15  Code, as the basis for the revision.  It is not

         16  secret, that when the Building Department indicated

         17  it was going to use the International Building Code

         18  as a basis for the New York City Code, we were

         19  concerned that the International Building Code did

         20  not adequately protect that health and welfare of

         21  millions of people who live, work, and visit our

         22  great City.

         23                 We were very pleased to see that our

         24  views were taken seriously, and the Building

         25  Department have accepted our input in the spirit it
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          2  was offered.  In short, the Commissioner, and her

          3  staff, gave Local One a seat on the table, along

          4  with building owners, engineers, community groups,

          5  and the Fire Department and others.  What resulted

          6  after months of hard work, is a code that well

          7  serves our City.  The broad support that the bill

          8  enjoys from major unions, contractors, engineers,

          9  community groups and others, is quite impressive and

         10  speaks to how well the proposed code turned out.

         11                 While all parties in the process made

         12  compromises, I am confident that the safety and

         13  health of New Yorkers is not compromised by the

         14  proposed code.  Safety is a major concern for our

         15  Local on job sites big and small, for everyone who

         16  works there. Int. 478- A codifies the Building

         17  Department common law powers, to act during

         18  emergencies, under the proposed code, the licensing

         19  requirements for master plumbers and fire

         20  suppression contractors are straight.  We are

         21  confident that the Building Department will make

         22  sure that these who fall under these new provisions,

         23  will strictly comply to them.

         24                 On behalf of Local One, I would

         25  extent my commendations to the Mayor, the Building
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          2  Department, and the Building Commission and hundreds

          3  of volunteers who served on the various committees.

          4                 Plumbers Local One fully supports

          5  Int. 478- A and the Model Code Program, and we urge

          6  its prompt passage.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          8  Dan.

          9                 I was always confident that we were

         10  going to work it out.  And everyone was jumping

         11  around screaming and yelling, and I would say, It

         12  will happen.  So, I'm glad.  Do you have any

         13  questions?

         14                 No?  Thank you.

         15                 Michael McGuire.  Get in here Mike.

         16  Andrew Chin. I know you're here someplace.  I saw

         17  you.  There you are.  Michael Skomsky.

         18                 And we've also been joined by Council

         19  Member Gale Brewer.

         20                 Whoever wants to start.

         21                 MR. MCGUIRE: Good afternoon.  Mike

         22  McGuire, representing the Mason Tenders District

         23  Council.

         24                 The first question we have to ask on

         25  this issue is, does New York City need a new
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          2  Building Code?  The answer is a resounding "yes".  I

          3  first testified before this Committee on this issue

          4  11 months ago, on November 30, 2004.  In the time

          5  since then, the New York City Department of

          6  Buildings has issued nearly 100,000 building

          7  permits.  That volume of work alone, points out the

          8  need for a standardized code.  Additionally, New

          9  York City's current Building Code is unique.  A

         10  hodge- podge of standards, buttressed with laws

         11  passed in knee- jerk reaction to uncommon events.

         12  This makes it very difficult for builders unfamiliar

         13  with our code to do business with in New York.

         14                 When the New York City Building

         15  Code's last comprehensive revision occurred in 1968,

         16   -- it puts things in perspective -- John Lindsay

         17  was in his first term as Mayor, the MTA had just

         18  been formed by the State Legislator, Shirley Chisolm

         19  became the first African- American woman elected to

         20  Congress, and this body, which was the 37- member

         21  New York City Council at the time, was led by

         22  Council President Frank O'Connor.  The New York City

         23  of 19689 was a long, long time ago.  Everything else

         24  has changed, why not the Building Code?

         25                 This is not to say that New York
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          2  City's Building Code is bad.  In fact, it's quite

          3  good, and many of the elements added over the years

          4  are what makes it good.  The fact that our code is

          5  so stringent creates safe buildings for all New

          6  Yorkers. However, the current code lacks clarity,

          7  and does include some antiquated practices that made

          8  sense when included, but have outlived their

          9  usefulness.  The difficulty of moving a development

         10  project through the paperwork process is legendary

         11  in New York, and the current code has much to do

         12  with those difficulties.

         13                 It is the archaic entries and the

         14  aforementioned difficulties that make wading through

         15  the murkiness of our current code so problematic

         16  that brings us here today.  I'm here to advocate for

         17  the new Building Code that would be the best for New

         18  York City, the International Building Code.  One of

         19  the great impediments we see to development in New

         20  York City, is not having a standardized code.  When

         21  developers have to fight through a code that has

         22  layer after layer of amendments passed in reaction

         23  to accidents, building collapses, fires, and other

         24  disasters, the stumbling blocks can be

         25  insurmountable.  A City like New York needs a code
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          2  that is proactive, not reactive.

          3                 In reading Int. 478- A, I was struck

          4  by its flexibility.  In Int. 478- A, New York City's

          5  unique situation is recognized, and the bill states

          6  that the International Building Code would be

          7  adopted "with appropriate modifications reflecting

          8  the unique character of the City."  The choice here

          9  is between the IBC and the current New York City

         10  Building Code.  The current code needs

         11  standardization.  The IBC offers that

         12  standardization while Int. 478- A allows amendments

         13  to it, to fit the unique character of our City.

         14                 As someone who represents organized

         15  labor, it is gratifying to see a wide variety of

         16  organizations supporting a measure that would lower

         17  the cost of construction in New York, without it

         18  coming out of the pockets of workers.  The Mason

         19  Tenders District Council is happy to join with the

         20  development community, the architectural and

         21  engineering groups, professional associations,

         22  community groups, and the vast majority of building

         23  trade unions that are supporting the IBC.

         24                 On behalf of the 15,000 members of

         25  the Mason Tenders District Council's constituent
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          2  locals, I urge the passage of Int. 478- A with all

          3  due haste.  Thank you.

          4                 MR. CHIN: Good afternoon.  My name is

          5  Andrew Chin. I'm here to speak on behalf of the

          6  Consolidated Edison Company of New York, Inc.,

          7  better known as Con Edison.  I also serve on the

          8  Risk and Security Advisory Committee that provides

          9  guidance to the New York City Department of

         10  Buildings Code Development Committees on topics of

         11  risk and security in building regulations.

         12                 First, let me begin with some basic

         13  facts about Con Edison.  We supply electricity, gas,

         14  and steam to some three million customers in New

         15  York City and Westchester County over an area of

         16  approximately 660 square miles.  The total

         17  population within this area is 8.3 million, and we

         18  provide electricity to nearly 400,000 commercial and

         19  industrial customers within New York City alone.

         20                 In order to provide our customers

         21  with electricity, gas, and steam service, Con Edison

         22  maintains over 88,000 miles of underground cable,

         23  some 4,200 miles of gas mains, and over 100 miles of

         24  steam pipes.

         25                 Con Edison's energy systems serve a
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          2  vibrant and growing community of people, businesses,

          3  and homes.  We are striving to maintain our

          4  excellent reliability record and to build for future

          5  economic growth and energy demand by making

          6  significant investments in our infrastructure.  Over

          7  the past ten years, Con Edison has invested $4.5

          8  billion upgrading and expanding our electric

          9  transmissions and distribution system.  We also have

         10  one of the largest safety staff in the industry, to

         11  oversee these projects and ensure public safety.

         12                 More housing, more computers and

         13  office equipment, and more air conditioning are some

         14  driving factors in our need for continued

         15  investment.  We take our commitment and our

         16  responsibility to our customers and to our service

         17  area seriously.

         18                 For the first time in more than three

         19  decades, Con Edison of New York had three major

         20  substations under construction simultaneously.  All

         21  three were completed and became operational in 2004.

         22    These substations represent a significant

         23  milestone in our company's strategy of continuing to

         24  meet current electric needs at a high level of

         25  reliability while adding capacity for the future.
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          2                 These facilities are part of the

          3  investment in energy infrastructure the company

          4  continues to make to meet an ever- increasing demand

          5  for electricity though our service area.

          6                 Over the next three years, we plan to

          7  invest more than $3 billion in the region's electric

          8  transmission and distribution systems.  We have

          9  already acquired property in Manhattan and the Bronx

         10  and plan to build three new substations at these

         11  locations.  By 2010, we expect to build a total of

         12  six new substations in Westchester, the Bronx, and

         13  Manhattan.  Our capital investment program reflects

         14  the vibrancy of our service territory, and the

         15  strength of the local economy in which we serve.

         16                 Con Edison supports Intro. 478- A and

         17  sees the new code as a help to reduce construction

         18  costs by eliminating red tape and allowing the

         19  utilization of modern technology.  By adopting an

         20  easy- to- reference national format, it will also

         21  save valuable time and eliminate costly confusion.

         22  The International Building Code has been adopted as

         23  a model code in most states, therefore allows for

         24  engineering continuity in our designs when

         25  discussing analysis and construction details with
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          2  manufacturers in other parts of the country.  The

          3  New York City Code has not been updated to reflect

          4  latest wind and seismic good practice while the

          5  International Building Code does, for example; the

          6  adoption of the American Society of Civil Engineers,

          7  ASCE 7 for wind structures.

          8                 Con Edison service area encompasses

          9  New York City and Westchester County, working within

         10  these bounds of a common standard will eliminate the

         11  need of evaluating multiple codes that in turn will

         12  enhance the engineering specifications and drawings.

         13  In addition, the International Building Code is more

         14  user friendly and easier to follow, facilitating

         15  compliance with this area of public safety.

         16                 Thank your this opportunity to

         17  comment on this important piece of legislation and

         18  we urge this Committee and the Council to pass

         19  Intro. 468- A.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         21                 MR.SKOMSKY: Good afternoon

         22  Chairperson Provenzano, City Council Members.  I'm

         23  Michael Skomsky.  I'm Deputy Executive Director,

         24  Director of Legislation at the Building Owner's and

         25  Managers Association of Greater New York, more
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          2  commonly known as BOMA/New York.  BOMA New York is

          3  comprised of over 850 member firms that collectively

          4  represent over 400 million square feet of real

          5  estate; more than 3 million office occupants.  Our

          6  members are responsible for over $1.5 billion in

          7  annual tax revenue.  Founded in 1967, BOMA New York

          8  is federated with BOMA International, which was

          9  established in 1907, and is comprised of 108 local

         10  associations with over 19,000 members, who own and

         11  manage more than 9 billion square feet of commercial

         12  properties.  We thank the City Council for this

         13  opportunity to make testimony at the hearing.

         14                 Consistent with BOMA New York's

         15  testimony on November 30th, and June 24th, we are in

         16  full support of Int. 478-

         17  A, and the International Building Code process.  We

         18  believe that the Building Code has been very well

         19  developed, and that it will continue to influence

         20  the construction renaissance in New York City.  New

         21  York certainly deserves a 21st century code.  It is

         22  time to upgrade the antiquated existing Building

         23  Code from 1968.

         24                 The fact that Int. 478- A will

         25  increase safety standards in almost every capacity,
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          2  is essential to building owners and managers.  With

          3  anticipated lower construction costs, with easy

          4  reference to a national format that will have the

          5  opportunity to have portions of the code revised

          6  every three years, we sincerely believe there is no

          7  reason for delay of the passage of Int. 478- A.

          8                 We aligned with the growing community

          9  of major unions, construction companies, engineering

         10  firms, professional associations, and our fellow

         11  real estate organizations that are in support of

         12  this bill.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         14  Do we have any questions?  Is Gale still back there?

         15    She's not.  Okay.  Thank you.

         16                 Monty Mitchell; Zygmunt Staszewski;

         17  Professor Edward Re.

         18                 MR. MITCHELL:  Good afternoon Chair

         19  Provenzano and Members of the Housing and Building

         20  Committee.  I am Monty Mitchell, AIA, Chair of the

         21  Code Committee of the AIA New York Chapter, the

         22  founding chapter of the American Institute of

         23  Architects, representing 4,000 architects,

         24  professional affiliates, and public members.  The

         25  Code Committee has reviewed the administrative
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          2  section of the Introduction 468, and we support the

          3  adoption of the International Building Code with

          4  amendments, for New York City.

          5                 We commend Commissioner Lancaster and

          6  her staff for the work over the past year, in

          7  adapting the International Building to the complex,

          8  overlapping issues facing existing buildings in New

          9  York City.

         10                 We urge City Council to follow New

         11  York State in the adoption of a model building code

         12  to aid in the uniformity of interpretation of the

         13  building code.  We feel the use of the IBC on both a

         14  regional and local level will provide for better

         15  enforcement of the building code, including the New

         16  York State Energy Code.

         17                 As Co- Chair of the Existing

         18  Buildings Committee of the Mayor's Task Force, I

         19  have worked over the past year with members of our

         20  chapter and committee to review the existing

         21  buildings provision of the International Existing

         22  Building Code. The International Existing Building

         23  Code deals with ratings of archaic materials, and

         24  provides different levels of conformance for the

         25  replacement of non- compliant materials.  We
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          2  recommend the adoption of the family of IBC Codes,

          3  including the IBC Fire Code, to reduce the conflicts

          4  in the overlapping jurisdictions.  The codes would

          5  be updated on a three- year basis to adapt to

          6  changing needs, including the recommendations of the

          7  Mayor's Task Force on High Rise Building Safety.

          8                 We commend the New York City

          9  Department of Buildings in the adoption of the

         10  national standards in the acceptance of new

         11  materials to encourage innovation in the

         12  construction industry.  We look forward to working

         13  on new reference standards which have been updated

         14  to prevent New York City from lagging behind the

         15  rest of the country.

         16                 Thank you, and I would be pleased to

         17  answer any questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         19  Next.

         20                 MR. STASZEWSKI: Good afternoon.  My

         21  name is Zygmunt Staszewksi.  I am the President of

         22  the New York Fire Alarm Association, a not- for-

         23  profit organization, which represents over 40 major

         24  fire alarm equipment manufacturers, distributors,

         25  fire alarm monitoring stations, and fire alarm
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          2  engineers.

          3                 Since 1991, I've been a member of the

          4  New York City Fire Department's Industry Advisory

          5  Board, serving in an advisory capacity to the Chief

          6  of Fire Prevention.  Also, for the past 15 years,

          7  I've been involved in assisting the Department of

          8  Buildings and Fire Department in rewriting the

          9  present fire protection regulations and helping

         10  bring new fire protection materials and technologies

         11  to the New York City market.

         12                 Since 1992, I've been conducting fire

         13  protection courses at the New York University Real

         14  Estate Institute.

         15                 I am also President of the ZS

         16  Engineering PC, a leading fire protection

         17  engineering firm in New York.  Over the past 15

         18  years, we designed and inspected more than 3,000

         19  fire protection systems in New York City.

         20                 As a Professional Engineer, I design

         21  systems based on the New York City Building Code,

         22  which was adopted in 1968. While subsequent

         23  amendments to the Building Code, including the Local

         24  Law number 5 of 1973 increased fire safety in high-

         25  rise office buildings, and Local Law number 16, of
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          2  1984 did the same things for hotels and department

          3  stores, for most other occupancies, we still rely on

          4  the Building Code as it was written in 1968.

          5                 The 1968 Building Code never

          6  predicted construction of multiplex movie theaters,

          7  which to this day, do not require a fire alarm

          8  system or voice evacuation, even though they may

          9  have 25 screens and may accommodate thousands of

         10  viewers.

         11                 The 1968 Building Code never brought

         12  the new fire alarm technologies into the live

         13  performance theaters, which to this day, do not

         14  feature full alarm, smoke detection, and voice

         15  evacuation systems.

         16                 The International Code Council, FEMA,

         17  and NFPA have all determined that it is nearly

         18  impossible to conduct an orderly evacuation of more

         19  than 1,000 people from any occupancy without the use

         20  of emergency one- way voice paging systems.

         21  Unfortunately, the present Building Code does not

         22  require adequate emergency voice paging for places

         23  of assembly, department stores, shopping malls,

         24  schools, colleges, apartment buildings, train

         25  stations, bus terminals, and many other occupancies
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          2  that can accommodate over 1,000 people.

          3                 The 1968 Building Code did not

          4  anticipate construction of 60- story apartment

          5  buildings, which to this day, do not have fire

          6  alarms, voice communication or system smoke

          7  detectors, to bring the elevators automatically to

          8  the first floor in case of fire.  AT this time,

          9  high- rise residential buildings in New York State

         10  outside of New York City, and in New Jersey, feature

         11  several life safety systems that we do not require

         12  to install in New York City.

         13                 We all know that smoke detectors save

         14  lives by providing early warning, as opposed to the

         15  sprinkler systems, which are designed primarily for

         16  property protection.  While designing smoke

         17  detection for residential high- rise and low- rise

         18  buildings in New York City today, we still use the

         19  present Building Code, which has adopted the NFPA

         20  Standard 74, of 1989.  This Standard was eliminated

         21  by the NFPA in '93, twelve years ago.  That is why

         22  we still do not have smoke detectors inside the

         23  bedrooms, as presently required by the current

         24  nationwide standards.

         25                 Today in residential buildings, we
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          2  only have local smoke detectors in that sound alarms

          3  inside the apartment they are installed in, but do

          4  not notify anyone outside of that apartment.

          5                 Today in residential buildings, we do

          6  not have smoke detection in public corridors, to

          7  recall the elevators to the ground floor, and to

          8  notify the Fire Department.

          9                 Today, the Fire Department has no

         10  equipment available to notify the occupants of the

         11  high- rise residential building, and to conduct an

         12  orderly evacuation, if needed.

         13                 For the past 12 months, while the

         14  Intro. 478- A has been before the City Council,

         15  hundreds of new residential buildings have been

         16  erected, all featuring inadequate early warning and

         17  smoke detection, as compared to residential

         18  buildings practically anywhere else in the United

         19  States.  At this time, I believe we have more high-

         20  rise residential buildings in New York City than the

         21  rest of the United States combined.

         22                 On behalf of the New York Fire Alarm

         23  Association, I urge you to adopt the Intro. 478- A

         24  as soon as possible, to bring the building design

         25  and construction codes to the 21st century. Please
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          2  remember that the buildings that we design today

          3  will serve our children, and our grandchildren.

          4  Thank you for your time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          6  Mr. Re.

          7                 MR. RE: Good afternoon Madam Chair

          8  Provenzano, Members of the City Council, colleagues,

          9  and friends.

         10                 My name is Edward Re Jr.  As a

         11  Registered Architect in the State of New York,

         12  Professor at Pratt Institute and at New York

         13  University, I teach Real Estate and Construction

         14  Management. I am also licensed to teach continuing

         15  education to Registered Architects and professional

         16  engineers in the State of New York.

         17                 I am most proud of being a founding

         18  member of the largest national construction

         19  management association in the United States, the

         20  Construction Management Association of America.  I

         21  also wish to bring to your attention that the course

         22  I teach at Pratt Institute is Building Codes, Rules

         23  and Regulations.  Therefore, it gives me great

         24  pleasure to appear before this distinguished Council

         25  in support of Int. 478- A.
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          2                 A new Building Code bringing New York

          3  City into an era of code uniformity is a welcome

          4  sight.  An international building based code

          5  emphasizes safety without sacrificing the need and

          6  the creation of a business- friendly environment.

          7                 When evaluating my input or opinion,

          8  as it pertains to Int. 467- A, I respectfully

          9  request that you recognize that it was 32 years ago

         10  today, when I walked into the Brooklyn Buildings

         11  Department for the first time.  I met the then

         12  Queens Borough Commissioner, Philip E. Olin, and

         13  little did I know that approximately 8 years later,

         14  I would become one of his students in his New York

         15  City Building Code class at Pratt Institute, much

         16  less imagine that he would later recommend me to the

         17  faculty where I would teach his course, the New York

         18  City Building Code.

         19                 It is with 30 plus years experience

         20  that I ask you to seriously consider the importance

         21  of, and the need for, updating, modernizing, and

         22  making the New York City Building Code a user-

         23  friendly, as well as a nationally accepted, and

         24  clearly understood code.

         25                 I also recognize the need for making
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          2  the New York City Building Code New York City

          3  specific.  Hence, when I was asked to participate in

          4  one of the Technical Committees, it was my pleasure.

          5                 Nevertheless, it is my understanding

          6  and knowledge of multi- national and national

          7  corporate policies that brings me here today.  New

          8  York City has a need to implement, utilize, and

          9  maintain, as well as make known to the general

         10  public, that it uses a uniform building code, one

         11  that is clearly understandable to national and

         12  multi- national corporations.

         13                 The problem with New York City having

         14  a building code different from that of other states,

         15  cities, and/or municipalities, is the creation of an

         16  unwarranted fear by national corporate policy

         17  makers.  As well as setting in confusion and/or

         18  frustration by out- of- state architects and

         19  engineers.  The architects of national corporate

         20  structures and policy makers may be reluctant to do

         21  business in New York City, or implement a policy of

         22  doing business in New York City, if we do not make

         23  known the use of a uniform and friendly building

         24  code.  In either case, this will result in higher

         25  cost of doing business in New York City.
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          2                 For example, many corporations have

          3  already implemented policies to conduct businesses

          4  throughout the United States, and exclude New York

          5  City.

          6                 TGIF National conducts business in

          7  nearly every state in the United States, including

          8  New York State, but not in New York City.  The TGIF,

          9  and other similar restaurants, we've all become

         10  familiar with throughout New York City are owned by

         11  the Reise Family.  Originally, the founders of TGIF

         12  thought that New York City rules and regulations

         13  were too cumbersome and too costly to be profitable.

         14  TGIF National did not purchase the New York City

         15  restaurants, and the Reise Family were permitted to

         16  own, run, and operate all of the New York City TGIFs

         17  without any compensation to the national

         18  corporation.  National TGIF did not pay for, nor did

         19  they receive any compensation for the New York City

         20  restaurants. At that time, they were not believed to

         21  be of value.

         22                 Despite a few sparsely located 7-

         23  Eleven stores, 7 Eleven has demonstrated a real

         24  reluctance to enter New York City.           This

         25  fear, or reluctance of national corporations
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          2  demonstrate, is in part, from a perception of the

          3  risk of building, owning, and maintaining structures

          4  in New York City.  Lack of uniformity in our

          5  Building Code is a business risk factor that may

          6  result in a continued reluctance of national

          7  business to enter New York City.

          8                 In conclusion, New York City should

          9  adopt Int. 478 A.  The implementation of an

         10  internationally- based building code is in keeping

         11  with most states throughout the United States.  The

         12  concept of a uniform building code makes a friendly

         13  building code and easily understood by all of its

         14  users.  All building code users will benefit.

         15                 A uniform, easily understandable

         16  building code is easier to enforce, and better

         17  enforcement will obviously result in a safer City.

         18  The beauty of an International Building- based Code

         19  is that we, in New York City, not only get to use

         20  our experiences in New York City, when adapting and

         21  updating the Code, it will also receive the

         22  advantage and the knowledge obtained by other cities

         23  that utilize a similarly based code.

         24                 My I also bring to the City Council's

         25  attention that the adoption of Int. 478- A allows
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          2  for the introduction of any and all positive aspects

          3  of any other code at any other time in the future.

          4  The ease and uniformity of reference nomenclature

          5  makes obvious the deficiencies and inefficiencies

          6  thereby making modifications and improvements easy.

          7  The average New York City citizen will be able to

          8  find, read, and understand the New York City

          9  Building Code.  And I'm sure you'll all agree that

         10  that in itself would be advantageous.

         11                 Therefore, it is with the safety of

         12  my neighbors, the financial interests for the City

         13  of New York, and the potentially efficient

         14  affordable ease of real property operations in mind,

         15  that I respectfully request the City Council adopt

         16  Int. 478- A.

         17                 If there aren't any further

         18  questions, I wish to thank the City Council for the

         19  opportunity to speak in favor of this bill.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         21  Do we have any questions?  We've also been joined by

         22  Council Member Letitia James. Thank all three of

         23  you.  I see my Teamsters are all leaving.  I feel a

         24  lot better when you're here.

         25                 Let's see.  Nancy McNabb.  Anthony
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          2  Caiazzo.  Lynne Simnick.  One of you please start.

          3                 MS. MCNABB:  Good afternoon Council

          4  Members, and thank you for allowing me to speak

          5  before you today.  My name is Nancy McNabb, and I am

          6  Director of Government Affairs for NFPA, the

          7  National Fire Protection Association.  I have had

          8  the privilege of speaking before this Committee and

          9  the City Council on several occasions about NFPA

         10  safety codes.

         11                 For over a century, NFPA has been an

         12  important contributor to building safety with many

         13  of the most critical safety provisions in our codes

         14  directly addressing life safety issues that were

         15  originally designed to meet needs right here in New

         16  York City.

         17                 From the Triangle Shirtwaist fire in

         18  1911, to the World Trade Center attacks in 2001,

         19  NFPA has been the only code developer on the ground

         20  to review and investigate fire and other hazards in

         21  New York City.  Many of the provisions in our

         22  construction, fire, and life safety codes have

         23  resulted directly from the information we have

         24  gathered by being on the scene during these

         25  investigations.
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          2                 As many of you know, NFPA codes are

          3  already a vital part of safety in this City.  NFPA's

          4  National Electrical Code serves as the basis for the

          5  updated New York City Electrical Code. Also, our

          6  Life Safety Code is used in every state, including

          7  New York, and has served as the basis for most of

          8  the life safety provisions in building codes over

          9  the years.

         10                 Many states use our Fire Code.  And

         11  our standard on disaster/emergency management and

         12  business continuity, NFPA 1600, is used for

         13  emergency preparedness here in the City, and other

         14  NFPA documents related to the use of automatic

         15  sprinklers, fire alarms, flammable and combustible

         16  liquids, and other building hazards are adopted

         17  statewide in New York.

         18                 These NFPA codes are widely used

         19  because they are developed through a process that

         20  produces the safest possible code. We think that the

         21  best way to develop compressive, up- to- date safety

         22  provisions is to make sure that each affected group

         23  has an equal seat at the table when codes are being

         24  developed.

         25                 Our system requires that a balance of
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          2  different interests, code enforcers, consumers, fire

          3  service professionals, electrical professionals,

          4  manufacturers, architects, plumbers, installers, and

          5  others, serve together on NFPA Technical Committees,

          6  providing balanced input.  In the NFPA process, no

          7  more than one- third of a Technical Committee may

          8  represent the same interest group.

          9                 It's a shame that the ICC does not

         10  share this philosophy of code development.  By only

         11  allowing certain groups to be a part of the

         12  decision- making process, the resulting codes leave

         13  out critical safety provisions.  And are driven by

         14  an enforcement mentality.

         15                 As the Plumbing Code is the central

         16  issue of this hearing, let me point out that the IPC

         17  lacks important safety provisions, due to a flawed

         18  development process.  There are many common sense

         19  provisions that were left out of the IPC.  Maybe if

         20  the IPC had included professionals as decision

         21  makers during the development of the IPC, some of

         22  these issues might have been addressed.  Instead, if

         23  New York City uses the International Plumbing Code,

         24  you, as a City Council, are going to have to review

         25  and approve proposed changes just to cover some of
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          2  those basic things that are left out each time the

          3  Code is updated.  These are only a few of the many

          4  reasons why NFPA's Model Building Code is the best

          5  choice for New York City.

          6                 Our open, consensus- based process

          7  simply has resulted in a building code that would

          8  provide the people who live and work in this City

          9  with the highest level of safety.

         10                 I hope you would put safety first

         11  when you make this decision.  We hope you will vote

         12  against Int. 478- A.

         13                 Thank you again for allowing me time

         14  to speak before you today.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         16  Next.

         17                 MR. CAIAZZO: Good afternoon

         18  Chairperson Provenzano, and Council Members.  My

         19  name is Anthony Caiazzo, and I'm a Licensed Plumber

         20  in the City of New York.  I'm the former President

         21  of New York City Master Plumbers Council.  I'm on

         22  the subcommittee to the Building Department.  And

         23  I'm on the Board of Directors to the construction

         24  trade, which is responsible for continued education

         25  for New York City plumbers.
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          2                 The Master Plumbers Council

          3  represents -- is one of the oldest organizations of

          4  licensed plumbers, and also represents most of the

          5  licensed plumbers in the City of New York.  Once

          6  again, we would like to reiterate that the process

          7  by which the Model City Code to reach consensus

          8  excludes vital segments of the industry. And

          9  particularly, the alteration and the plumbing repair

         10  sector, predominately smaller plumbing shops.

         11                 Many have stated that interests were

         12  represented and that the process was fair.  As we

         13  have stated in the past, we believe this is not the

         14  case.  With particular attention to the issue of

         15  Journeyman registration, this provision was added to

         16  the proposed code, through special interest groups

         17  who may have made privately negotiated deals.

         18                 It has been stated over and over that

         19  the process included all relevant participants for

         20  inclusion for the process for adoption of the new

         21  code.  Included, perhaps, however it did not provide

         22  them with the due consideration they deserved.

         23                 To date, it is my understanding that

         24  the Internet site established for participants on

         25  the Model Code Committee has not posted minutes from
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          2  the Administrative, Enforcement, and Technical

          3  Committee on any of the meetings held after January

          4  25, 2005.  In subsequent meetings, Janene Jaeger,

          5  Executive Director of the Master Plumbers Council,

          6  repeatedly stated her opposition to the Journeyman

          7  issue.  These minutes have not been distributed or

          8  posted, stating such.  Why is there no official

          9  documentation of this?

         10                 Since the last hearing on this issue,

         11  many members of the Master Plumbers Council and

         12  others concerned with this issue, have reached out

         13  to the Council members.  There is no communication

         14  on this issue from the Model Code Committee.

         15                 The alteration and repair segment of

         16  the plumbing industry provides the majority of the

         17  plumbing work in the City of New York.  Having a

         18  registered journeyman provision is not good for

         19  small business, or this segment of the industry.  In

         20  my opinion, the only thing it accomplishes to create

         21  an unnecessary regulation which the Building

         22  Department does not need or can police.

         23                 Once again, the plumbing industry is

         24  not in agreement on the issue of journeyman

         25  registration.  The Master Plumbers Council, since
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          2  inception of the idea to adopt a model code, has

          3  been willing to address all related issues and work

          4  to reach a mutually acceptable solution that will

          5  better the public at large.  Thank for allowing me

          6  to speak.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          8  Next.

          9                 MS. SIMNICK: Good afternoon Madam

         10  Chair, Committee. I'm here today speaking on behalf

         11  of the Plumbing Code to enact a New York City

         12  Plumbing Code based on the 2003 edition of the

         13  International Plumbing Code.  I'd like to thank you

         14  for the opportunity to be here today.  My name is

         15  Lynne Simnick, Field Service Representative,

         16  speaking on behalf of the International Association

         17  of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials.

         18                 I have over 27 years experience in

         19  the plumbing industry.  I'd like to thank the entire

         20  Housing and Building Committee for your tireless

         21  efforts in selecting a Model Code for New York City.

         22                 The International Association of

         23  Plumbing and Mechanical Officials began in 1926,

         24  which encompassed the first Standard Plumbing Code,

         25  Standard Gas Code, and Standard Water Pipe Code,
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          2  which eventually evolved into the Uniform Plumbing

          3  Code.  The Uniform Plumbing Code was the result of

          4  many years of research and study by Plumbing

          5  Inspectors, Master and Journeyman Plumbers,

          6  Contractors, and representatives of manufacturers of

          7  plumbing materials, who were concerned over the

          8  years, in effecting, for the sake of greater health

          9  protection, a widespread uniformity in the

         10  installation of plumbing systems.

         11                 The Code reflects the consciousness

         12  of the responsibility which persons who look to

         13  plumbing for a livelihood have experienced with

         14  respect to safeguarding the public health by means

         15  of higher standards for the installation,

         16  maintenance of plumbing systems.

         17                 Both the 2003 and the 2006 Uniform

         18  Plumbing Code have been developed utilizing the

         19  ANSI-accredited organization consensus method.  This

         20  code was developed with the fundamental belief that

         21  everyone must have the right to participate in its

         22  development, with an equal voice and vote.  The

         23  Uniform Plumbing Code is endorsed by the plumbing

         24  industry, including the American Society of Sanitary

         25  Engineers, The Plumbing, Heating, Cooling

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Contractors National Association, the World Plumbing

          3  Council, Mechanical Contractors Association of

          4  America, and the United Association.  The

          5  International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical

          6  Officials provide all the supporting publications to

          7  assist in implementing both the 2003 and 2006

          8  Uniform Plumbing Code.  In addition, when standards

          9  are nonexistent, IAPMO has exercised leadership by

         10  developing them for products and materials.

         11                 In reviewing the proposed New York

         12  City Plumbing Code, based on the 2003 International

         13  Plumbing Code, I noticed that there was a

         14  significant amount of amendments and deletions

         15  existed throughout this document.  You see, I'm very

         16  familiar with the International Plumbing Code, as I

         17  was previously the Secretariat for the International

         18  Plumbing Code, and the plumbing provisions for the

         19  International Residential Code for more than seven

         20  years.

         21                 As a plumber, code official, with a

         22  dual undergraduate degree in education and

         23  mechanical engineering technology, I have become

         24  familiar with both the Uniform Plumbing Code and the

         25  International Plumbing Code.  The same language that
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          2  you are proposing for amendments or deletions in

          3  Chapter three through twelve, in the International

          4  Plumbing Code exists, or are prohibited

          5  installations in the 2003 and the 2006 Uniform

          6  Plumbing Code.

          7                 As a leader in the plumbing and

          8  mechanical industry, IAPMO provides a superior

          9  plumbing mechanical code that addresses the concerns

         10  of the committee, the industry, and the citizens of

         11  New York City.  The foundation of this organization

         12  rests with the health and safety of the industry,

         13  while providing trained professionals with the

         14  resources necessary to implement the Uniform

         15  Plumbing Code.

         16                 One example you should have in front

         17  of you today is one paragraph from the International

         18  Plumbing Code which would be implemented as the

         19  Plumbing Code for New York City, compared to 22

         20  pages of the Health, Safety, and Medical Gas and

         21  Vacuum Systems.

         22                 We also offer drinking water backfill

         23  prevention certification, and the official magazine.

         24

         25                 The International Association of
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          2  Plumbing and Mechanical Officials developed the

          3  Uniform Plumbing Code for use in conjunction with

          4  any building code.  Including the International

          5  Building Code.  The ease of coordinating these codes

          6  well over a thousand jurisdictions throughout the

          7  United States have utilized the Uniform Plumbing

          8  Code, the Uniform Building Code, or International

          9  Building Codes together for many years.

         10                 At the state level, Alaska,

         11  California, Washington, Hawaii, Oregon, New Mexico,

         12  Arizona, Idaho, Nevada, Montana, South Dakota,

         13  Indiana, and Maine have adopted IAPMO codes in

         14  conjunction with the International Building Code.

         15                 The International Building Code,

         16  published by the International Code Council, is a

         17  Model Code based on the fire and building science,

         18  just that.  Not plumbing.  As ICC has stated

         19  previously, codes based upon the IBC are readily

         20  recognized and understood by those in the design and

         21  construction fields, and serve as the baseline for

         22  the design, construction, operation, and maintenance

         23  of the majority of public and private sector

         24  buildings in the U.S.  The International Building

         25  Codes are the leading edge of technology.  The
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          2  safety of the public, of the fire service and of

          3  emergency personnel is always a priority in the I

          4  Codes.

          5                 The industry is pushing for one

          6  united plumbing and mechanical code.  Both

          7  organizations at this time, have signed a Memorandum

          8  of Understanding.  IAPMO understands this

          9  philosophy, and provides assistance to whatever code

         10  the State or City has adopted.  The staff at the

         11  International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical

         12  Officials has extensive code development,

         13  educational, technical, and interpretative

         14  experience with both the Uniform and International

         15  Codes.  In addition, IAPMO offers plumbing and

         16  mechanical chapters to provide technical and

         17  educational opportunities, and to share the

         18  expertise of others towards resolving current

         19  problems in the plumbing and mechanical industry.

         20                 I'm asking you today, let us join

         21  together to support the decision of the Committee,

         22  and encourage the industry to embrace the New York

         23  City Plumbing Code.  Please take this opportunity to

         24  review IAPMO's Uniform Plumbing Code and Uniform

         25  Mechanical Code.  IAPMO knows this, and will support
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          2  the decision of the Committee and provide any

          3  additional resources to aid in the review process.

          4  As with other jurisdictions, IAPMO continues to

          5  provide free training and code books to all

          6  officials that enforce both the Uniform Plumbing

          7  Code or the Uniform Mechanical Code.

          8                 IAPMO would be happy to provide any

          9  code books, magazines, courses, to complement the

         10  Uniform Plumbing Code or Mechanical Code.

         11                 The goal of the industry is to

         12  provide a safe, effective, and efficient plumbing

         13  code, and IAPMO continues to meet that with the

         14  publication of the 2003 and 2006 Uniform Plumbing

         15  Code.

         16                 Thank you for the opportunity to make

         17  this testimony today, and I will be happy to answer

         18  any questions at this time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         20  Do we have any questions?  Thank all of you.  What?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm sorry.  I

         22  have a question for the gentleman from the Master

         23  Plumbers Council.  Were you here earlier when I

         24  asked the Commissioner what registration meant?  And

         25  if there was a test involved?
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          2                 MR. CAIAZZO: Yes, I was.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Alright.  And

          4  she said there was no test involved.  It was just a

          5  direct registration?

          6                 MR. CAIAZZO: Yes.  We're not sure

          7  where the Building Department came up with this

          8  journeyman registration.  Right now, there are

          9  probably about 1,000 licensed plumbers in the City

         10  of New York with active licenses.  For me to get my

         11  insurance updated, --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Those are

         13  Master Plumbers.

         14                 MR. CAIAZZO: Those are Master

         15  Plumbers.  Let's start with Master Plumbers.

         16  There's a thousand of us.  In order for us to get

         17  our insurance updated, it takes about two weeks

         18  after it's faxed in.  You're going to go put 10,000

         19  journeymen plumbers that the City has to now try and

         20  keep in line with or register them?  We find that

         21  it's not going to happen.  New York City plumbers

         22  now stand on line for hours to get our paperwork

         23  done.  I believe Mr. Oddo said that there's no rhyme

         24  or reason, or how can they figure out how they're

         25  going to change it?  You're going to give ten
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          2  thousand people a journeyman license, which today is

          3  going to be, what we're told, is going to be based

          4  on myself telling the City that my guys are

          5  journeymen.  Or, the union telling the City that

          6  this individual is a journeyman.  Well, what happens

          7  in three years?  What happens in ten years?  Is it

          8  just me telling somebody they're a journeyman?  What

          9  is the value of a journeyman license if they're not

         10  going to police it?

         11                 That's my question to the journeyman

         12  license.  What is it for?  If it's my word that --

         13  Ms. Provenzano, would you like to be a journeyman

         14  plumber?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.  It's

         16  your word, and you're registering with the City that

         17  you have so many people working for you in that

         18  category.  Correct?

         19                 MR. CAIAZZO: Well right now, how it

         20  works is, as a licensed plumber, myself and two of

         21  my brothers, we own a business. Three of us are

         22  licensed.  All of my workers work under my license.

         23  Now I have gentlemen who can run --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Wouldn't it be

         25  easier for your insurance company if they had a list
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          2  of all of the members that worked under you so that

          3   -- worse case scenario, you have a new person that

          4  came on a job, and broke the main -- I don't know

          5  the technical term --

          6                 MR. CAIAZZO: Go ahead, you're doing

          7  all right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: -- And ripped

          9  out the T line between the first and second floor,

         10  inadvertently, and they had a flood in a house.  And

         11  the insurance company comes in, and wants to sue you

         12  for the work that was done, you have a person that's

         13  working under you, you signed off on the job, but

         14  because you had some confidence in your staff, when

         15  they resealed the drywall, you had no idea that

         16  there was a hole in the T line.  How do you deal

         17  with that?

         18                 MR. CAIAZZO: I deal with it the way I

         19  deal with it today.  I mean, if a gentleman has a --

         20  the City's not saying that the journeyman has to

         21  have union insurance.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: No. I'm saying

         23  for --

         24                 MR. CAIAZZO: For me as a licensed

         25  plumber, whether a gentleman has a piece of paper or
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          2  not a piece of paper, we go and look at his work

          3  after so called mechanics.  I'm a licensed plumber

          4  for almost 27 years.  I can have a conversation with

          5  a gentleman and let you know whether or not he knows

          6  what he'd doing about plumbing.  Some of the best

          7  plumbers that I have are not "the smartest", but you

          8  know what?  They know how to run pipes, they know

          9  how to do things.  They might not know the code, --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes, but

         11  they're not taking a test, they're just registering.

         12    The level of intelligence is not a factor here.

         13                 MR. CAIAZZO: But what happens in

         14  three years?  It's a registration today.  What is it

         15  in three years?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But then you

         17  have a continuing committee that discusses that, and

         18  you have us to always articulate.

         19                 MR. CAIAZZO: You're also putting ten

         20  thousand names into a City that the City can't take

         21  care of a thousand of us.  In terms of registering

         22  our names and registering who we are, and getting

         23  our shirts updated.  What is the journeyman's

         24  license for? I'm sorry -- it's not considered a

         25  license.  A journeyman's certificate.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right, it's

          3  just an acknowledgment from my understanding, it's

          4  an acknowledgment that this person is working for a

          5  licensed Master Plumber.  That's it.

          6                 MR. CAIAZZO: I don't need more

          7  paperwork.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: As opposed to

          9  a person that's going around and picking up work

         10  without any registration at all, or any type of

         11  certificate at all.  Which is a problem for many

         12  people.  Because if you look in the local papers, a

         13  lot of those people that advertise that they're

         14  plumbers are actually just people that are trying to

         15  make extra money with no license, no journeyman

         16  registration or anything else.

         17                 MR. CAIAZZO: But now what you're

         18  going to do is you're going to give an individual

         19  with a journeyman certification something to show

         20  individually, which he might not feel, you, as a

         21  homeowner, if you saw a journeyman certification,

         22  allows him to work in your house.  And that's no

         23  insurance there.  You really don't know the guy's

         24  capability.  But you've given him a piece of paper

         25  that says New York City, he's a journeyman.  And I
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          2  would say 75 percent of the homeowners today, they

          3  don't ask for my plumbing license, which is in my

          4  wallet.  But you know what?  If you were smart

          5  enough to ask, do you have a license, and somebody

          6  produced a journeyman's certification for you, you

          7  might be fooled.  And it means nothing.  There's no

          8  insurance --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But you're

         10  implying that these certifications would just be

         11  given out by every licensed Master Plumber to

         12  whoever walked through the door.  You would hope

         13  that you had some sort of means to ask before you

         14  give out the certification.

         15                 MR. CAIAZZO: No matter how good my --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And in order

         17  to prevent this particular thing from happening, we

         18  would hope that, and expect, that the Plumbers

         19  Council would not just certify or give a journeyman

         20  certification to anybody that walked through the

         21  door. But at least have some standard of testing and

         22  confidence that the person you're giving the

         23  certification to has some ability to do basic

         24  plumbing.

         25                 MR. CAIAZZO: You're one hundred
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          2  percent right about the integrity of any licensed

          3  plumber to give a certification --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I would hope

          5  that the integrity would be the bottom line here.

          6  That's what the Building Department is trying to do,

          7  is to create some integrity throughout the process.

          8  Because it's been -- I can tell you in my community,

          9  we've had some horror stories.  Because my community

         10  is Jamaica, with small homes, and we've had a lot of

         11  problems with plumbers that send people out that

         12  have no capabilities to do the job.  Or people that

         13  are listing in local papers and claiming to be -- or

         14  sticking their cards in restaurants, and people call

         15  them, and they have no integrity at all.

         16                 So we would hope that at least this

         17  develops some level of integrity, and hopefully,

         18  that the Master Plumbers Council, who I thought we

         19  had a good working relationship with, would have

         20  that type of integrity to insure that whoever they

         21  gave a certificate to -- because it's giving you a

         22  lot of power and authority, I would think, to create

         23  an opportunity to register a journeyman.

         24                 MR. CAIAZZO: I think you're mixing up

         25  the things here, because while I might give somebody
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          2  a journeyman certificate, it that gentleman leaves

          3  me, he can come to you and convince you that he's

          4  now a journeyman, and he could do the work.  Right

          5  now --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: If you had to

          7  register every year, at the end of the year, you

          8  drop that name.  Online, you could drop that name

          9  anytime.  So that certificate wouldn't be valid.

         10                 MR. CIAIZZO: The City right now, and

         11  the reason in Jamaica and in other areas the City

         12  cannot police today a thousand licensed plumbers,

         13  not to mention two thousand guys -- no offense to

         14  the firemen or the cops, who are doing it to you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: It goes back

         16  to integrity.

         17                 MR. CIAIZZO: But they can't do the

         18  licensed plumbers today who are nothing more than

         19  coverups.  How are they going to police another ten

         20  thousand journeymen certifications?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I would go

         22  back to the integrity of the Plumbers Council to

         23  ensure that no one is given a certificate without

         24  having some basis or skill level to get a basic job

         25  done.
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          2                 But I want to thank you for coming

          3  down to the --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          5  all.

          6                 We're not finished.  Herb Mandel.

          7  Matthew Andrus. And Kamila Kiszko.

          8                 MR. MANDEL: Thank you very much.

          9  Ladies and gentlemen, my name is Herbert Mandel.

         10  I'm an architect in practice in New York City, and a

         11  member of the American Institute of Architects.  I'm

         12  here today as the Chair of the Residential

         13  Subcommittee of the Model Code Commission.  And

         14  thank you for the opportunity to appear in favor of

         15  Int. 478- A, adoption of a New York City Building

         16  Code based upon the Model Codes developed by the

         17  International Code Council.

         18                 Under the watchful eyes of

         19  Commissioner Lancaster, and Assistant Commissioner

         20  Penzi, my committee is one element within a group of

         21  over 400 building professionals, has been reviewing

         22  and working with ICC for the past 24 months.  Their

         23  input and ongoing technical support have been

         24  enlightening and invaluable.  As a result of our

         25  deliberations, I can report to you that Int. 478- A,

                                                            89

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  the adoption of a new and updated New York City

          3  Building Code, based upon the International Building

          4  Code, has the support and backing of my committee.

          5                 This position has been arrived at

          6  after due diligence, which included scrutiny,

          7  debate, and evaluation of each of the elements of

          8  both the International Building Code, which is the

          9  basic code document published by ICC, and the

         10  International Residential Code, which applies to

         11  one- and two- family dwellings, to determine their

         12  applicability for use in New York City.  And, I

         13  might add, to determine which of the elements of the

         14  code we proposed to modify, for better applicability

         15  for New York City.

         16                 This process has been undertaken by

         17  as knowledgeable and dedicated a body of experts as

         18  one could imaging assembling. It includes

         19  architects, engineers, contractors, as well as

         20  representatives of the Fire Department, the Building

         21  Department, housing agencies, the development

         22  community, labor, and code professionals.  It would

         23  be hard to bring together a more diversified,

         24  competent, or committed group of individuals to

         25  engage the many issues which must be addressed in
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          2  this undertaking, and it has been a privilege to

          3  work with them.

          4                 During the past two years, the

          5  Residential Committee has met at a minimum, monthly.

          6    Panels assigned to special tasks have met

          7  independently of the main body.  Additionally, we've

          8  had technical training sessions and joint meetings

          9  with a number of the other subcommittees to discuss

         10  matters of mutual concern.  Our investigations have

         11  led us to conclude that, in selecting the IBC, the

         12  Mayoral Commission clearly made the right decision

         13  for New York City.

         14                 The Residential Committee has an

         15  assignment which is somewhat different than most of

         16  the other panels.  We were given a task of focusing

         17  on any and all aspects of the main body of the code,

         18  which will impact on, and mold residential

         19  structures.  In that role, we've had free license to

         20  comment on, and propose modifications to any part of

         21  the document which will make it appropriate for use

         22  in what we call, we all agree is "The City".

         23                 Additionally, we are charged with the

         24  responsibility for ensuring that the application of

         25  the code will result in buildings which will be
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          2  safe, and at the same time, economically viable.

          3  That mandate has been the driving force in our

          4  deliberations.

          5                 Furthermore, we are devoted to the

          6  production of desperately needed affordable housing,

          7  with, I might add, the full support of Commissioner

          8  Lancaster, and we are scrutinizing every element of

          9  the code which will have a bearing on this issue.

         10                 The IBC family of codes is fast

         11  becoming a national standard for construction of

         12  buildings.  They are well organized, well written,

         13  technically competent, up to date, and supported by

         14  a large staff of trained professionals.  With the

         15  adoption of an IBC- based code, we have concluded

         16  that the recognition of the most up- to- date, and

         17  cost effective materials, and methods of

         18  construction inherent in the code, and its periodic

         19  updating process, will enable us to realize their

         20  use within the framework of safe and secure

         21  buildings for New York City.

         22                 As a part of this process, I want to

         23  reiterate, with some discussion still to come, we

         24  are also looking forward to the facilitation of a

         25  low- rise prototype, which has long been thought of
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          2  as a much- needed addition to the housing market for

          3  a segment of the community which is now grossly

          4  underserved, the so- called affordable housing,

          5  which we believe is a key, key issue for the new

          6  code and for New York City.

          7                 In conclusion,  I would like to

          8  reiterate my support of the adoption of a New York

          9  City code based upon ICC.  The first step in the

         10  process is crucial to the success of our efforts.

         11  What we're doing here is creating a code which will

         12  become a model for high- density cities across the

         13  country.  It will be a living document which will be

         14  reviewed by every three years to ensure its

         15  timeliness.  And we will derive the benefit of a

         16  well- established, and competent organization, which

         17  provides ongoing evaluation and support.

         18                 I sincerely believe that it's the

         19  right code for New York City, and I hope that you

         20  share my enthusiasm.  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         22                 MR. ANDRUS: Thank you Chairwoman

         23  Provenzano, and the members of the Committee on

         24  Housing and Buildings to provide me the opportunity

         25  to speak to you today in support of Int. 478- A.
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          2  In deference to you, Madam Chairwoman, and the

          3  members of this Committee, we've already spent a lot

          4  of time on this important issue.  I will keep my

          5  remarks short and to the point.

          6                 My name is Matthew Andrus, and I am

          7  currently the Deputy Secretary of State for Local

          8  Governments and Community Services, at the New York

          9  Department of State.  The Department of State is

         10  responsible for the administration of the Uniform

         11  Fire Prevention and Building Code throughout New

         12  York State outside the City of New York.  In my

         13  capacity as Deputy Secretary, I have oversight of

         14  the Division of Code Enforcement and Administration,

         15  as well as the Office of Fire Prevention and

         16  Control.  My divisions oversee the enforcement

         17  practices of more than 1,400 local governments

         18  throughout New York State, and provide training and

         19  support services to New York's Building and Fire

         20  Service.

         21                 With me today is Raymond Andrews,

         22  Assistant Director for Code Development in our Codes

         23  Division.  The Codes Division serves as technical

         24  and administrative staff to the State Fire

         25  Prevention and Building Code Council.  Minority
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          2  Leader James Oddo represents the City of New York on

          3  this Council.  The Code Council is the statutory

          4  body charged with promulgating and maintaining the

          5  State's Uniform Fire Prevention and Building Code

          6  and State Energy Conservation Construction Code.

          7                 I am here today to express the

          8  Department of State's strong support of Int. 478- A.

          9    I am aware that this bill represents the

         10  collective expertise of over 400 of New York's

         11  brightest design, organized labor, real estate,

         12  community groups, construction, and regulatory

         13  professionals.  These volunteers have devoted

         14  countless and numerous hours to the task of creating

         15  a building code that would best serve the citizens

         16  of this great City.  The most successful aspect of

         17  this effort has been the open and inclusive process

         18  that has been utilized to develop a plan for

         19  updating the City's code.

         20                 By adopting the International Codes,

         21  New York State has successfully joined a national

         22  effort to standardize building, fire prevention,

         23  plumbing, and energy conservation regulations. The

         24  International Codes are utilized throughout the

         25  country, including the neighboring states of
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          2  Connecticut and New Jersey.

          3                 I urge the Committee on Housing and

          4  Buildings and the City Council to act swiftly in the

          5  passage of this historic legislation to continue the

          6  momentum of the hundreds of volunteers, some with us

          7  here to day, committed to a new and improved

          8  building code for the City of New York.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         10  Did you submit testimony?

         11                 MR. ANDRUS: Yes, I did.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Oh, okay.

         13  Thank you for being here.

         14                 MR. ANDRUS: Thank you for having me.

         15                 MS. KISZKO: Good afternoon.  My name

         16  is Kamila Kiszko, and I am here on behalf of the New

         17  York Association for Affordable Housing.  NYSAFAH is

         18  a statewide organization of developers and others

         19  involved in the financing and building of affordable

         20  housing.  The bulk of our 250 members work

         21  throughout New York City's five boroughs, and are

         22  collectively responsible for most of the housing

         23  built with City, State, or Federal subsidies in New

         24  York City in recent years.

         25                 I am here today in support of Int.
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          2  478- A, which would make the International Building

          3  Code with modifications the basis for the New York

          4  City building code.

          5                 For affordable housing developers,

          6  who operate on very narrow profit margins in order

          7  to meet the rent and income guidelines of government

          8  subsidy programs, nothing is more important than

          9  predictability and efficiency.  The current code has

         10  grown increasingly convoluted and outdated since its

         11  last comprehensive update in 1968.  In its current

         12  state, its complexity can cost substantial delays,

         13  both in the predevelopment period and during

         14  construction.  And it does not allow builders to

         15  fully utilize modern construction technology.  The

         16  result is higher costs and fewer affordable housing

         17  units.

         18                 Int. 478- A is the result of two

         19  years of work by over 400 engineers, architects,

         20  labor and real estate professionals, and government

         21  leaders who have been working to modify the

         22  International Building Code, to meet the special

         23  challenges of building in New York City.  Throughout

         24  this effort, they have put a special priority on

         25  retaining the high safety and construction standards
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          2  that are found in the City's current code.

          3                 At the same time, this new code

          4  recognizes that new materials and methods that have

          5  been developed in the last three and a half decades.

          6    It would also offer greater clarity to everyone

          7  who will use it, from builders to architects, to the

          8  Department of Building personnel.

          9                 Of special note is the fact that this

         10  code is proactive.  The committees established by

         11  the Department of Building's Model Code Program, as

         12  well as the City Council, will be able to review and

         13  update the code as necessary.  This includes the

         14  recently established affordable housing committee,

         15  co- chaired by Bernie Carr of NYSAFAH and Bertha

         16  Lewis, of ACORN.

         17                 Resources for affordable housing

         18  development are scarce and need to be used wisely.

         19  Int. 478- A, while insuring that New York City will

         20  continue to lead the nation in its concerns for

         21  building safety, will allow us to bring construction

         22  techniques into the 21st century and ensure that

         23  they are constantly revised and therefore, improved

         24  and updated.  While it will benefit all New Yorkers

         25  by lowering costs and simplifying the development
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          2  process, it will be especially beneficial for

          3  affordable housing.  Thank you for the opportunity

          4  to testify, and for your continued support of Intro.

          5  478- A.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          7                 Council Member Brewer, do you have a

          8  question?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I just want to

         10  say that the speaker from the New York State

         11  Association for Affordable Housing is a former

         12  Hunter College public service scholar in the Office

         13  of Council Member Gale Brewer.  She is

         14  extraordinary.  She just gave an extraordinary

         15  testimony, and I want to thank her for teaching me a

         16  lot.  And say how extraordinary it was to see her

         17  today at the table.  Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I was just

         19  going to tell her that we're going to report to

         20  Bernie what a good job she did.

         21                 Gary Higbee.  Jonathan Humble.

         22  Chester Vogel.

         23                 We have one more panel after this.

         24  Whoever wants to start.

         25                 MR. VOGEL: Thank you Chairman

                                                            99

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Provenzano, Council members of the Committee on

          3  Housing and Buildings.  My name is Chet Vogel.  I'm

          4  a principal and stockholder of ME Engineers, a

          5  consulting engineering company with more than 200

          6  employees worldwide.  And I'm also Chairman of the

          7  Mechanical/HVAC/Boiler Committee of the New York

          8  City Model Code Program.  And the Chairman of the

          9  American Council of Engineering Companies of New

         10  York's Mechanical Code Committee.

         11                 For more than 40 years, I've had the

         12  opportunity to use the current building code, and

         13  have had a great deal of experience of applying that

         14  to projects and buildings in New York City.  And I

         15  can tell you that the time has come for a change.

         16                 My company is currently providing

         17  consulting engineering services for several new

         18  sports facilities here in New York City, including

         19  two professional major league baseball stadia, and a

         20  arenas for professional NBA/NHL sports, along with

         21  health care and science and technology projects.

         22  Although we won't have the opportunity to use this

         23  building code on these projects, we are building

         24  similar projects throughout the United States, using

         25  International Building Codes.
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          2                 For the past two and a half years,

          3  our committee has been working diligently to develop

          4  the International Mechanical Code in a form that's

          5  acceptable to New York City.  We have over 35

          6  leaders with interest and expertise in

          7  mechanical/HVAC/boilers, representing labor,

          8  industry, engineering, design, real estate, and

          9  construction.  As well as New York City government

         10  agencies.  In fact, we have three members of the

         11  Fire Department on our committee, and we've had

         12  active meetings with the Fire Department to discuss

         13  smoke control, fuel oil, and other common areas of

         14  interest.

         15                 As a result of these efforts, more

         16  than 200 amendments have been written for the

         17  International Code Council code for mechanical

         18  systems to make it compatible with the requirements

         19  of New York City buildings.

         20                 We believe we have helped the New

         21  York City Department of Buildings to meet its short-

         22  term goal of a comprehensive Mechanical/HVAC/Boiler

         23  code, with the required modifications necessary to

         24  enhance public safety, and encourage economic growth

         25  through the use of national building standards and
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          2  technology.

          3                 The International Mechanical Code,

          4  and the International Fuel Gas Code and their

          5  amendments, which will be part of a future bill, are

          6  expensive and written in code language with

          7  reference to national standards such as those

          8  currently commonly in use in New York City, from the

          9  American Society of Heating/Refrigeration/Air

         10  Conditioning Engineers, and the National Fire

         11  Protection Association when appropriate.

         12                 The new code will help to reduce

         13  construction costs by eliminating red tape and

         14  allowing utilization of modern technology.  By

         15  adopting and easy- to- reference national format, it

         16  will also save valuable time and eliminate costly

         17  confusion. Therefore, for the reasons I've

         18  mentioned, and in order to acknowledge the

         19  extraordinary efforts to date of more than 400

         20  volunteers involved in the development of the Model

         21  Code, and the City's commitment to meet its long-

         22  term goal of a completed Model Code by the year

         23  2006, I strongly recommend your support in the

         24  adoption of Int. 478- A so that the remainder of the

         25  code work can proceed forward.
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          2                 New York City deserves a 21st century

          3  code, not an expensive modified 1960s code.  We,

          4  along with major labor unions, construction

          5  companies, engineering firms, professional

          6  associations, and community groups, ask that you act

          7  now.  There is no reason to delay.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          9  Next.

         10                 MR. HIGBEE: Chairman Provenzano,

         11  Council Members, my name is Gary Higbee, I'm the

         12  Director of Industry Development for the Steel

         13  Institute of New York and the Ornamental Metal

         14  Institute of New York.  I also serve on the

         15  Construction Requirements Committee of the Mayor's

         16  Model Code Task Force, and am a member of the State

         17  Fire Prevention and Building Code Council.

         18                 I'm here to speak in support of

         19  Int.478- A on behalf of the Institutes,

         20  organizations whose members are contractors engaged

         21  in the erection of structural steel and ornamental

         22  metal used in building and heavy construction

         23  projects located in New York City.

         24                 The Institutes' members contribute to

         25  the vitality of the City by annually employing some
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          2  4,000 structural and ornamental iron workers.  Their

          3  work is showcased in virtually every large building

          4  construction project underway in the City, from Time

          5  Warner Center, Hearst Tower, Seven World Trade

          6  Center, One Bryant Park, to the Bronx Criminal Court

          7  Complex, and Staten Island's St. George Ferry

          8  Terminal.

          9                 My remarks are to strongly urge that

         10  the Council pass without delay, Int. 478- A, which

         11  calls for replacing the City's present construction

         12  code with one based on the National Model Code.  The

         13  bill contains requirements for submitting the

         14  completion bill to the City Council that will go

         15  beyond the plumbing provisions to directly impact

         16  our industry.  Specifically, to the extent that

         17  implementation of this bill is timely, it will

         18  facilitate the use of modern materials designed

         19  formulae, and methods of construction.  This will

         20  not only allow for economic benefits in

         21  construction, but it should reduce delays in the

         22  issuance of building permits without decreasing

         23  safety, and this is important at a time when

         24  construction activity is on the rise.

         25                 Failure to support this bill would
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          2  only delay essential code modernization in New York

          3  City, and prevent building construction from taking

          4  full advantage of the material innovations and

          5  regulatory streamlining afforded to jurisdictions

          6  elsewhere in the State, the region, and the country

          7  that have already adopted the IBC as a national

          8  modern building code.

          9                 The delay would also jeopardize a

         10  more than two years spent in review and coordination

         11  of the IBC for implementation as the City's Model

         12  Code.  This is work that has involved the intense

         13  personal commitment of more than 400 industry

         14  leaders and technical experts representing as you

         15  know, design, construction, labor, real estate, fire

         16  service, and City agency stakeholders.

         17                 As I mentioned in previous remarks

         18  before this Committee, although time spent doing

         19  something is not a measure of its success, it must

         20  be recognized that this review process is essential

         21  to the adoption of any national model code, and

         22  adapting it for use in New York City.

         23                 The Institutes see no compelling

         24  reason to delay action on this bill.  It's a bill

         25  which enjoys broad support from the City's vigorous
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          2  and highly regarded construction industry, from the

          3  owners and community leaders, to get the ball

          4  rolling, to designers and the builders who see these

          5  aspirations turned into reality.

          6                 At a time when the nation's design

          7  and construction industry, product manufacturers,

          8  and enforcement community are increasingly familiar

          9  with the format and the content of the IBC as a

         10  national building code, and with other jurisdictions

         11  in the surrounding Northeast region using, or about

         12  to use the IBC, including the adjacent counties of

         13  Nassau, Suffolk, and Westchester, adopting the IBC

         14  represents an extraordinary opportunity to modernize

         15  our construction requirements, advance building

         16  safety, and simplify the building process.

         17                 I urge you to strongly support Int.

         18  478- A.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         20                 MR. HUMBLE: Madam Chair, Honorable

         21  Members.  I am Jonathan Humble.  I represent the

         22  American Iron and Steel Institute, an institute

         23  that's based in Washington D.C.  But represents the

         24  steel mills of Canada, Mexico, and the United

         25  States.  We represent about 75 percent of the U.S.
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          2  And North American steel produced in this area.  The

          3  remainder of which is either non- members or foreign

          4  interests, if you will.

          5                 We are here before you to support the

          6  proposal to integrate a national model family of

          7  codes into the Building Code of the City of New

          8  York.  This is a momentous and positive approach for

          9  updating the Building Code, as this potentially

         10  presents tremendous growth and opportunity for the

         11  City.

         12                 The proposal, we believe, represents

         13  another logical step in the ongoing effort by New

         14  York City and the Department of Buildings to make

         15  more efficient and cost effective, the Building Code

         16  and the building within the City itself.

         17                 We'd encourage the members of the

         18  Council to act favorably towards this Int. 478- A,

         19  and any future updates as they come along.  I put as

         20  a post script, based on testimony today, additional

         21  features that would assist us, or take away an

         22  ongoing prevailing issue with the steel industry,

         23  and that is our standards.  One of the dichotomies,

         24  which is ironic for New York City, is that we are

         25  teaching, on an ongoing basis, the updates to our
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          2  steel documents, if you will, and what's funny about

          3  New York City, is that we update two of the

          4  engineers and architects those new standards, but

          5  when it comes to our answering questions about

          6  building in New York City, we have to go back to

          7  archaic -- read the final documents -- which

          8  currently, the City of New York represents all --

          9  probably documents that are in excess of ten years

         10  old.

         11                 Ergo, we would appreciate favorable

         12  approach to this as well as future items to keep up

         13  to date with the technology and new information that

         14  would be valuable for the City of New York in

         15  building.  Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         17  very much.

         18                 Do we have any questions for these

         19  three gentlemen?

         20                 We've also been joined by Council

         21  Member Robert Jackson.  I was going to say, he was

         22  here and gone, but he's here again.

         23                 Thank all of you.

         24                 Daniel McGee, and Stephen Rosario.

         25                 We also have a statement by Francis
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          2  Lombardi, Chief Engineer for the Port Authority of

          3  New York and New Jersey that we'll be putting into

          4  the record.

          5                 You are Stephen Rosario:

          6                 MR. ROSARIO: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Is there a

          8  Daniel McGee in the house?  Oh, okay.  Thank you

          9  very much.  So you're riding alone.

         10                 MR. ROSARIO: Good afternoon

         11  Chairwoman Provenzano, members of the Committee.

         12  I've submitted testimony, but I'm not going to read

         13  it.  For the record, my name is Steve Rosario.  I'm

         14  Director of the Northeast Region for the American

         15  Plastics Council. I'm also here on behalf of our

         16  Buildings and Construction Division, the Vinyl

         17  Institute, the Plastic Pipe and Fittings

         18  Association, and the New York plastics industry.

         19                 I'm here to testify in support of the

         20  City's adoption of the International Building Code.

         21  I believe this is my third time before the Council.

         22  We've also been involved -- and we're members of the

         23  Materials Technical Committee, although I'm not here

         24  representing them.

         25                 The Mayor, along with the City
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          2  Council, the Buildings Commissioner, Patricia

          3  Lancaster, and hundreds of volunteers who did work

          4  on this issue should be commended for taking this

          5  bold step in modernizing the City's antiquated

          6  building code.  And just computing at -- sitting at

          7  my seat over there -- between myself and my

          8  technical consultants who helped to support this

          9  process -- we put in several hundred hours into this

         10  process. We worked not only in New York City, but at

         11  the State level when they did it here in New York,

         12  in the State of Maine, and elsewhere.  So we are

         13  very much committed to working on this issue, and

         14  helping municipalities and states adopt modern

         15  building codes.

         16                 The issue that we have, although we

         17  do support the IBC, is the fact that plastic pipes,

         18  and materials that many of our members produce in

         19  terms of plastic pipe, is still very much restricted

         20  under this particular code.

         21                 I believe it was Mr. Ashkinazi

         22  (phonetic) who referenced New Jersey, right across

         23  the Hudson River, pointing out, that this will help

         24  us keep up with New Jersey.  But in reality, it

         25  doesn't.  Because if you look at the high rises,
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          2  right across the river, many of them which do have

          3  plastic pipes, cannot be built here in New York City

          4  under the current provisions, because of the

          5  restriction of plastic pipes.  So New York City is

          6  still at a disadvantage when it comes to plumbing

          7  systems, which tend to be a big- ticket item in any

          8  building project.

          9                 I do a fair amount of traveling,

         10  representing our industry throughout the Northeast,

         11  and last week, there was a very interesting piece on

         12  market place, and the fact that it is somewhat

         13  difficult to do business here in New York City.  And

         14  not gone unnoticed.  It was called Marketplace Takes

         15  on Manhattan.  And the first segment that they did

         16  was on doing business in New York City. And after

         17  the background, it was very interesting that one of

         18  the first examples they gave was the fact that your

         19  really cannot use plastic pipe in commercial or

         20  high- rise residential applications.

         21                 So, you've seen that there are

         22  commentaries -- we had nothing to do with that.  I

         23  wish I could take credit for it, but I can't.  It

         24  was quite a surprise, me, listening to that

         25  commentary.  I'm not going to go over all the
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          2  issues.  You've heard them before.  You've seen them

          3  in our testimony.

          4                 But I would like to conclude by

          5  saying that although we have this issue, we have put

          6  aside our own particular interests, to support the

          7  broader cause here, which is to adopt the

          8  International Building Code.  And we hope that the

          9  Council -- it appears that the Council will take up

         10  this cause.  However, we also hope that the City

         11  will revisit this particular code issue.  And reject

         12  the current arbitrary restrictions on plastic pipe,

         13  and adopt the International Plumbing Code in the

         14  fullest sense, as provided in Chapter 29 of the IBC

         15  and the International Plumbing Code without

         16  restrictions.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         18                 Council Member Comrie is going to

         19  read --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Madam Chair, I

         21  want to make a clarification regarding the

         22  journeyman plumber registration.  In working with

         23  the Building Department to try to make some kind of

         24  amelioration to the concern of the Master Plumbing

         25  Council, regarding whether or not a test is
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          2  required, they had taken away that provision

          3  altogether.  Anyone who will get this document, on

          4  approximately page 153 and 154, Section 210, dealing

          5  with journeymen plumber registration, it talks about

          6  the qualifications. And it's not every person

          7  working under a Master Plumber that has to get the

          8  certification.  It's only an applicant that has a

          9  minimum of five years of full- time experience in

         10  the performing of plumbing work under the direction,

         11  continually supervision of a licensed Master

         12  Plumber, or equivalent at least one year of which

         13  shall be in New York City.  And also, the

         14  registration need not be renewed.  The registration

         15  for a journeyman plumber will not require renewal or

         16  reissuing, and the registration card must clearly

         17  state that this registration is not a license, and

         18  the holder is not authorized to perform plumbing

         19  work in New York City, except under the direct and

         20  continuing supervision of a licensed Master Plumber.

         21                 So I think that -- I want to thank

         22  the Building Department, because this is much

         23  different than what the Council was recently

         24  concerned about.  This allows people that are still

         25  working their way up to work under Master Plumbers,
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          2  and only people that are looking actually to become

          3  Master Plumbers themselves are going to care about

          4  becoming journeymen, because they're going to use

          5  that as a step up to move forward.

          6                 So I want to thank the Buildings

          7  Department for listening to us.  I want to thank

          8  Terzah for quickly getting the hundred -- page 154

          9  in this document to make those clarifications.

         10  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         12  And unfortunately, the gentleman has gone, so he'll

         13  have to watch this on TV to hear your statement.

         14                 We also have testimony from Ed

         15  Malloy, President of the Building and Construction

         16  Trades Council.  And we'll also be entering that

         17  into the record.

         18                 I would like to thank everyone that

         19  testified today, and all who were able to stick it

         20  out with us.  Hopefully you'll be back on the 15th

         21  to be here for the vote.  I know you will be.  And I

         22  know you will be.

         23                 Okay.  Proposed Int. 468- A is laid

         24  over.

         25                 Thank you.  Happy Halloween.
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          2                 This hearing is adjourned.

          3

          4                 (The following written testimony of

          5  Edward Malloy was submitted for the record.)

          6

          7

          8  Written Testimony Of:

          9  Edward J. Malloy

         10  President

         11  Building and Construction Trades Council

         12  of Greater New York

         13

         14            Good afternoon Chairwoman Provenzano and

         15  members of the Committee.  My name is Edward J.

         16  Malloy.  I serve as President of the Building and

         17  Construction Trades Council of Greater New York, and

         18  organization consisting of more than 50 local unions

         19  and district councils which represent more than

         20  100,000 working men and women in the five boroughs

         21  of New York City.  We are pleased to testify in

         22  support of Intro. 467- A and the adoption of the

         23  International Building Code.

         24                 The purpose of the building code in

         25  any great city, much less any small hamlet, is to
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          2  protect the safety of workers and the public while

          3  at the same time encouraging responsible economic

          4  development.  Our currently voluminous building code

          5  is so outdated and complex that it is often poorly

          6  understood and incapable of being properly enforced.

          7                 Although the current building code

          8  can and does produce sound structures, unfortunate

          9  challenges of the era in which we live require a

         10  building code that creates structures that are not

         11  only sound, but also conducive to emergency

         12  responses.  Few in our industry believe the current

         13  building code is the tool it should be to promote

         14  work place safety during construction.  Nearly

         15  everyone in our industry believes the current

         16  building code inhibits economic activity.

         17                 New York City's current building code

         18  has become a drag on economic growth in a highly

         19  competitive industry that cannot afford to be

         20  burdened by unnecessary cost increases.  With the

         21  decline of our manufacturing base, the building and

         22  construction industry is one of the few remaining

         23  areas of our City's economy where tens of thousands

         24  of blue collar families can earn a middle class

         25  living with the benefits of health insurance and
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          2  pensions.

          3                 According to the U.S. Consensus

          4  Bureau of 2000, 76 percent of the building and

          5  construction work force in New York City also lives

          6  here.  Employment in our industry has ranged over

          7  the past several years from approximately 110,000 to

          8  120,000 jobs according to the New York State

          9  Department of Labor.  We need a modern building code

         10  to assure this strong record of growth is maintained

         11  and enhanced, particularly in light of the ambitious

         12  building and rebuilding efforts slated for the

         13  coming years.

         14                 The IBC is the most comprehensive

         15  building code in use today.  It has been developed

         16  over 65 years, and is used in nearly all of the

         17  United States with good results.  There is no reason

         18  to believe it will not be a success in New York

         19  City.  In fact, there is every reason to believe it

         20  will improve our current situation, which is

         21  functionally unworkable and inconsistent with modern

         22  technologies.  It will further allow us to be more

         23  responsive to the safety challenges of densely

         24  populated urban centers.

         25                 The Mayoral Advisory Commission and
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          2  the Model Code Program have worked over the past

          3  three years with broad participation from all

          4  sectors of the industry to adopt and adapt the IBC

          5  for New York City.  Other building codes, including

          6  the current building code, provide no such

          7  structured and regular process for thoughtful input.

          8    The fact that New York City's current building

          9  code has not been significantly updated since 1968

         10  is evidence of the need for change.  The IBC

         11  represents the best opportunity for New York City to

         12  create a building code that meets our critical

         13  safety requirements without further distancing us

         14  from other locales in terms of prohibitive costs.

         15                 Madam Chairwoman and members of the

         16  committee, as an organization committed to

         17  representing both the safety and economic concerns

         18  of working men and women in the building and

         19  construction industry, we are completely comfortable

         20  that the IBC will improve our efforts on both

         21  fronts.  We therefore urge its passage.  Thank you

         22  for your consideration.

         23

         24                 The following written testimony of

         25  Francis J. Lombardi was submitted for the record.
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          2                 This statement is to express support

          3  of the NYC Model Code Program and enactment of this

          4  bill, Intro. 478- A.  The Department of Buildings

          5  should be commended for taking the initiative to

          6  launch this program.

          7                 Although New York City Building Code

          8  is recognized as one of the most stringent codes in

          9  the country, its convoluted nature and overall lack

         10  of clarity need to be improved, particularly, the

         11  fact that it has not undergone major revisions since

         12  1968.

         13                 The Model Code Program is an

         14  unprecedented public/private partnership of many

         15  professionals involved in its technical and advisory

         16  committees, whose members have been working together

         17  to craft the new construction codes for the City.

         18  These new construction codes will be based on model

         19  codes of the International Code Council (ICC), and

         20  amended to fit the high density urban environment

         21  needs of the City and, at the same time, will retain

         22  the most important public safety provisions that are

         23  part of the current New York City Building Code.

         24                 The Port Authority is a responsible

         25  and responsive governmental agency, with a long-
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          2  standing policy of meeting or exceeding municipal

          3  building and fire codes at all if its facilities.

          4                 The Port Authority has put its policy

          5  in writing, and has signed Memorandums of

          6  Understanding with the New York City's Department of

          7  Buildings, as well as the Fire Department, and most

          8  recently, reaffirmed this policy by signing the

          9  World Trade Center Redevelopment Agreement.  The

         10  Port Authority is very appreciative of the

         11  cooperation it receives from the Department of

         12  Buildings whenever the Port Authority needs code

         13  interpretations.

         14                 With the upcoming World Trade Center

         15  redevelopment and the Port Authority's commitment to

         16  public safety and compliance with the local building

         17  code, the Port Authority strongly feels the need for

         18  New York City to have the best construction codes

         19  possible and ensure that the City has the safest

         20  buildings and is a safe place to live and work in

         21  the 21st century.

         22                 International Code Council's model

         23  codes (the International Codes) are well recognized

         24  throughout the country and are used by FEMA and

         25  other Federal agencies.
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          2                 The International Codes have been

          3  adopted by 48 states, including New York, New

          4  Jersey, and the New England states. These codes are

          5  now being followed by the Port Authority at its

          6  facilities in New Jersey and they would have also

          7  been followed outside the NYC limit if the agency

          8  operated any of them.  Our experience in using the

          9  International Codes has been positive.

         10                 As a bi- state governmental agency,

         11  the Port Authority is involved in the construction

         12  and operation of facilities in the region and can

         13  see the importance of having uniformity in the

         14  building codes in the region.

         15                 The new construction codes will bring

         16  New York City in line with national building

         17  standards and technology and will ease the burden on

         18  the construction industry, while at the same time

         19  retaining the highest public safety standards in a

         20  high density building environment.

         21                 The International Codes are regularly

         22  updated through a rigorous public hearing process to

         23  keep up to date with advancements in technology.

         24  Provisions in these codes and the rationale behind

         25  them are easily understandable with the formal
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          2  interpretations and explanatory material published

          3  by the International Code Council.

          4                 Recognizing the many positive aspects

          5  of the International Codes, the Port Authority is

          6  very supportive of the NYC Model Code Program and is

          7  actively participating in many of its 13 technical

          8  committees and the advisory committees to provide

          9  input from the lessons learned since 1993.

         10                 The Port Authority also participated

         11  in the Department of Building's World Trade Center

         12  Building Code Task Force established after the

         13  events of 9/11 and has shared with the Task Force

         14  the life safety enhancements implemented at the

         15  World Trade Center after the 1993 terrorist bombing.

         16    Many of these enhancements are now included in

         17  Local Law 26.

         18                 The Port Authority's commitment to

         19  building safety remains the constant and continuing

         20  goal.  The Port Authority shares the goals of the

         21  Model Code Program and fully supports its efforts on

         22  the new Construction Codes for the City that will

         23  keep up with the advancements in technology and

         24  bring uniformity within the region.

         25                 The Port Authority strongly feels
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          2  that the passage of Intro. 478- A is extremely

          3  important for the City and urges the City Council

          4  members to support this bill.

          5                 Francis J. Lombardi, P.E.

          6                 Chief Engineer

          7                 The Port Authority of NY & NJ.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 3:15 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, LENORE NAGLE, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 31st day of October 2005.
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         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the
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